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“Trusted, Quality Service since 1905” 
 

Welcome to a meeting of the Board of Water Commissioners of the City of San Bernardino. 
 The City of San Bernardino Municipal Water Department recognizes its obligation to provide equal access to those individuals with 

disabilities. Please contact the General Manager’s Office (909-384-5191) two working days prior to the meeting for any requests for 
reasonable accommodation, to include interpreters.  

 All documents for public review are on file with the Water Department located on the 5th floor of City Hall, 300 North “D” Street, 
San Bernardino or may be accessed online at http://www.ci.san-bernardino.ca.us/water/newsalerts/agendas_n_minutes.asp 

 Please turn off or mute your cell phone while the meeting is in session.  
 Any member of the public desiring to speak to the Board of Water Commissioners concerning any matter not on the agenda, but 

which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board of Water Commissioners, may address the body at the end of the 
meeting during the period reserved for public comments.  Said total period for public comments shall not exceed forty-five (45) 
minutes, unless such time limit is extended by the Board of Water Commissioners. A three-minute limitation shall apply to each 
member of the public, unless such time limit is extended by the Board of Water Commissioners.  No member of the public shall be 
permitted to “share” his/her three minutes with any other member of the public. 

 The Board of Water Commissioners may refer any item raised by the public to staff for appropriate action or have the item placed 
on the next agenda of the Board of Water Commissioners.  However, no other action shall be taken nor discussion held by the 
Board of Water Commissioners on any item which does not appear on the agenda unless the action is otherwise authorized in 
accordance with the provisions of subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2 of the Government Code. 

 Public comments will not be received on any item on the agenda when a public hearing has been conducted and closed. 
 

CALL TO ORDER:   a.m./p.m. 

Attendee Name Present Absent Late Arrived 
President Toni Callicott     
Commissioner Louis Fernández      
Commissioner Wayne Hendrix      
Commissioner Judith Valles      
Commissioner David E. Mlynarski     
General Manager Stacey Aldstadt     
Deputy General Manager Robin Ohama     
Director of WRP John Claus     
Director of WU Miguel Guerrero     
Director of Finance Terri Willoughby      
Director of ERC Jennifer Shepardson     
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 OTHERS:   
 

1. CLOSED SESSION:    a.m./p.m. 
 

Pursuant to Government Code Section(s): 
 
A. Conference with legal counsel – existing litigation – pursuant to Government Code 

Section 54956.9(a): In Re City of San Bernardino, California, United States Bankruptcy 
Court, Central District of California (Riverside), Case No. 6: 12-bk-28006-MJ.  
 

B. Conference with legal counsel – anticipated litigation – significant exposure to 
 litigation – pursuant to Subdivision (b) (1), (2), (3) (A-F) of Government Code 
 Section 54956.9. 
 
C. Conference with legal counsel – anticipated litigation – initiation of litigation – 

pursuant to subdivision (d) (4) of Government Code Section 54956.9.  
 

 D. Conference with legal counsel – personnel – pursuant to Government Code Section 
54957. 
 

E. Conference with legal counsel and security consultant on matters posing a threat to 
the security of essential public services, including water, drinking water, and 
wastewater treatment  pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 (a).   
 

F. Conference with labor negotiator – pursuant to Government Code Section 
54957.6(a). 

 

END OF CLOSED SESSION 
RECONVENE MEETING 

 

CALL TO ORDER:   a.m./p.m. 
 

Attendee Name Present Absent Late Arrived 
President Toni Callicott     
Commissioner Louis Fernández      
Commissioner Wayne Hendrix      
Commissioner Judith Valles      
Commissioner David E. Mlynarski     
General Manager Stacey Aldstadt     
Deputy General Manager Robin Ohama     
Director of WRP John Claus     
Director of WU Miguel Guerrero     
Director of Finance Terri Willoughby     
Director of ERC Jennifer Shepardson     

 
OTHERS: 
 
 



Regular Meeting Agenda February 2, 2016 

 
City of San Bernardino Board of Water Commissioners Page 3 

2. ANNOUNCEMENTS BY MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS: 
 
 

3. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

MOTION: That the motions indicated by consent calendar items 3A through 3E3 be 
adopted, except for    . 

 
   MOTION:    SECONDED:     
 

A. WAIVE FULL READING OF RESOLUTIONS 
 

MOTION: That full reading of the resolutions on the regular or supplemental 
agendas of the Board of Water Commissioners be waived. 

 
B. PAYROLL 

 
MOTION: Approve the payroll for the pay period January 11, 2016 through 

January 24, 2016. 
 
C. CONTRACTS AND BILLS 
 

MOTION: Approve the payment of contracts and bills to be presented at this 
meeting. 

 
D. MINUTES 

 
  MOTION: Approve the minutes of the meetings of January 19, 2016 of the 

Board of Water Commissioners. 
 
 E. PERSONNEL ACTIONS:  
 

  1.  PROMOTION:  Daniel Silva, Water Utility Worker I, Range 132, to the position 
of Water Utility Worker II, Range 138, ratify effective January 25, 2016. This 
position is in the budget and based on the needs and staffing for this section, the 
position is still justifiable under the budget. 

 
  2.  PROMOTION:  Jamie Yglesias, Water Utility Worker III, Range 142, to the 

position of Water Utility Lead Worker, Range 148, ratify effective January 25, 
2016. This position is in the budget and based on the needs and staffing for this 
section, the position is still justifiable under the budget. 

 
  3.  PROMOTION:  Ildegardo Espinoza, Water Utility Worker I, Range 132, to the 

position of Water Utility Worker II, Range 138, ratify effective January 25, 2016. 
This position is in the budget and based on the needs and staffing for this section, 
the position is still justifiable under the budget. 

 
MOTION: Approve the Personnel Actions as submitted. 
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     END OF CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
4. ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA: (if any) in accordance with Section 54954.2 (b) (2) of 

the Government Code (Brown Act), a two-thirds vote (or a unanimous vote if less than two-
thirds are present) is required to add an item for action provided that there is a need to take 
immediate action and that the need for action came to the attention of the agency after the 
agenda was posted. 

 
MOTION: Approve an additional item(s) to be added to the agenda in accordance with 

Government Code Section 54954.2(b) (2). 
 

MOTION:    SECONDED:     
 

5. PRESENTATION OF THE RESULTS OF THE FISCAL YEAR 2014-15 AUDIT AND 
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT; DAVIS FARR LLP:  On 
February 2, 2016, Jennifer Farr, Partner in the firm of Davis Farr LLP, will present and 
distribute to the Board of Water Commissioners the annual audit report for the City of San 
Bernardino Municipal Water Department for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.  The 
auditors’ opinion is unqualified and reflects our conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles. 

  
MOTION: Approve the annual audit report for the City of San Bernardino Municipal 

Water Department for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015. 
 

   MOTION:   SECONDED:     
 

6. CONTRACT NO. 1599 – SPIESS CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC. – CHANGE 
ORDER NO. 9 – UNIT 1 CLARIFIER AND AERATION SYSTEM UPGRADE:   In 
January 2014, the Board of Water Commissioners entered into Contract No. 1599 with Spiess 
Construction Company, Inc. (SCCI) for the Unit 1 Primary Clarifier and Aeration System 
Upgrade at the Water Reclamation Plant Project.  This project includes modifications to the 
Unit 1 Primary Clarifier, the Unit 1 Aeration Basins, the existing mixed liquor (ML) effluent 
conveyance system between the Unit 1 Aeration Basins and the Unit 1 Mixed Liquor Splitter 
Box, electrical and control system modifications, and yard piping modifications. 

 
The basins could not be drained prior to the project’s design; therefore, the actual condition 
and location of existing items in the bays was not fully known. As such, additional work on 
the project was anticipated. 

 
This project was approved as part of the 2013/2014 Capital Improvements Budget.  Change 
Order No. 9 in the amount of $23,235.00 has been prepared for extra work to be performed 
by SCCI under Contract No. 1599. The funding source for this Change Order is C.O. 00086 
(Budget ID No. 05-200), which currently has an unencumbered balance of $294,293.20. 

 
MOTION: Approve Change Order No. 9 to Contract No. 1599 with Spiess Construction 

Company, Inc., in the amount of $23,235.00 and authorize the General 
Manager to execute the change order. 

 
MOTION:    SECONDED:     
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7. APPROVAL OF SPECIAL PURCHASE/REFURBISHMENT OF ULTRAVIOLET 
DISINFECTION SYSTEM COMPONENTS – RIX FACILITY ULTRAVIOLET 
DISINFECTION SYSTEM REHABILITATION PROJECT (CO-00187) – IRONBROOK 
UV (A DIVISION OF COLLCORP, INC.):   The Department’s tertiary treatment facility, 
the Rapid Infiltration and Extraction (RIX) Facility, utilizes an ultraviolet (UV) radiation 
system as a component of the treatment (specifically, disinfection). The principal role of this 
system is to inactivate pathogenic microorganisms in the filtered effluent.     

 
This system has been in operation for nearly twenty (20) years. The average life span for this 
type of equipment is normally fifteen (15) years. Continuous use and weathering has caused 
the system to reach the end of its useful life. Currently, there are five (5) channels in 
operation with a total of fifteen (15) ultraviolet radiation banks, and all of the banks are in 
need of refurbishment. Much of the hardware, such as the stainless steel cabinets and lamp 
rack support cages, are reusable as they do not suffer any considerable deterioration. 

 
A quote was solicited from the only company authorized to maintain and supply parts for 
Fischer & Porter UV disinfection system at the RIX facility. The quote was received from 
Ironbrook UV (A Division of Collcorp, Inc.) in the amount of $1,218,325.00. 

 
Staff is requesting the Board of Water Commissioners approve this purchase as permitted in 
Policy and Procedure No. 51.030 Purchasing, Part I, Initiation of Purchase Requisition, 
Subsection H, Special Purchases prior to staff procuring the equipment.  This will allow for 
the timely rehabilitation of the RIX UV disinfection system. 

 
The funding sources for this project are the FY2015/2016 RIX Fund Capital Improvement 
Project titled RIX - UV System Rehabilitation (C.O. 00187, Budget ID No. 16-207), which 
currently has a total of $280,000 in unencumbered funds and a $1,200,000 loan from the San 
Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District. 

 
MOTION: Approve the Special Purchase equipment procurement/refurbishment from 

Ironbrook UV (A division of Collcorp, Inc.) in the amount of $1,218,325.00 
as outlined in Purchasing Policy 51.030, Part 1, Section H, Special Purchases. 

 
MOTION:    SECONDED:     
 

8.  AWARD OF CONTRACT – EPA 109S SITE DEMOLITION, GRADING AND WALL 
CONSTRUCTION PROJECT:  Five (5) bids were received and opened on December 7, 
2015, for Specification No. 1646, “Furnish all labor, equipment, and materials for EPA 109S 
Site Demolition, Grading, and Wall Construction Project, located in San Bernardino, CA.” 

 
 As a result of size limitations at the existing EPA 109 site, proposed improvements must be 

constructed on the parcel immediately adjacent to this site.  This parcel is known as 974 
Home Avenue (EPA 109S).  In preparation for the future construction of the EPA 109 
Shallow Well and associated facilities, the existing structure and improvements on this parcel 
shall be demolished and removed.  In order to maintain the site appropriately secured, new 
block walls must be constructed around the site’s perimeter.  This project consists of 
demolishing and removal of existing improvements and grading and construction of the 
block wall at 974 Home Avenue.   
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MOTION: Accept the bid of IVL Contractors, Inc. as the lowest responsive, responsible 
bidder, and award a contract in the amount of NINETY TWO THOUSAND 
AND 00/100 DOLLARS ($92,000.00) TO FURNISH ALL LABOR, 
MATERIALS, AND EQUIPMENT FOR THE EPA 109S SITE 
DEMOLITION, GRADING, AND WALL CONSTRUCTION PROJECT, 
SAN BERNARDINO, CALIFORNIA, and authorize the President and 
Secretary to execute the contract. 

 
MOTION:     SECONDED:     
 

9. RECOMMENDATION TO TRANSFER FUNDS FROM MT. VIEW AVENUE 12” 
MAIN EXTENSION (CO 10553) TO GIS APPLICATIONS UPGRADE PROJECT (CO 
10736) AND TO AWARD A CONTRACT FOR FY 2015/16 GEOGRAPHIC 
INFORMATION SYSTEM APPLICATIONS UPGRADE PROJECT TO SPATIAL 
WAVE, INC. (CO 10736):  As a part of its Fiscal Year (FY) 2015/16 Capital Improvement 
Program, the Department plans to develop additional functions and software tools for its 
Geographic Information System (GIS).  The Department’s GIS incorporates system assets 
such as pipelines and valves, in addition to other data layers such as parcels, streets, 
topography and many other attributes.  The GIS platform is used for mapping, data 
management, asset information (such as pipeline age/material), and for tracking development 
and boundary changes.  The GIS is comprised of hardware and software, and each of these 
elements is updated periodically as technology evolves. 

 
The additional development and integration planned for this year is focused on user tools for 
the Engineering, Operations, and Water Quality sections, including automation of some 
report data entry and further development of user dashboards.  Spatial Wave, Inc. has 
completed several previous phases of work for the GIS and the Department has been 
satisfied with its performance.   

 
 Staff is recommending that the Board of Water Commissioners (Board) approve a 

Professional Services Agreement for the FY 2015/16 Geographic Information Systems 
Applications Upgrade Project with Spatial Wave, Inc.    

 
 The funding source for this project is the FY 2015/16 Water Fund Capital Improvement 

Budget through the project titled Water System (GIS) Application Upgrades.  Current year 
funding is $120,000.00; this amount is not sufficient to fully fund the project.  A budget 
transfer of $85,000.00 is requested from Mt. View Avenue 12” Main Extension (CO 10553) 
to GIS Applications Upgrade Project (CO 10736).  The Mt. View Avenue 12” Main 
Extension project has been delayed and will be budgeted in a subsequent fiscal year for 
construction. 

  
MOTION: Approve a transfer of $85,000.00 from Construction Order 10553 to 

Construction Order 10736; and 
 
 Award a contract to Spatial Wave, Inc. in the amount not-to-exceed 

$194,845.00; and authorize the President and Secretary to execute the contract 
to provide GIS Software and Applications services.  

  
   MOTION:   SECONDED:     



Regular Meeting Agenda February 2, 2016 

 
City of San Bernardino Board of Water Commissioners Page 7 

10. CLAIMS SETTLEMENTS – QUARTERLY REPORT:  In accordance with Policy 20.090 – 
Claims Handling, the Environmental and Regulatory Compliance Division has prepared the 
Quarterly Claims Settlements Report detailing all claims processed for the period of 
OCTOBER 2015 through DECEMBER 2015.  (INFORMATION ITEM ONLY) 

 
11. REPORTS: 
 

A. Report of the President: 
 
 
 
 
 

B. Report of the Commissioners: 
 
 
 
 
 

C. Report of the Directors: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D. Report of the General Manager: 
 
 
 
 

 
 
12. PUBLIC COMMENTS ON ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
13. ADJOURNMENT:  The meeting adjourned at    a.m./p.m. 
 

NOTE:  The next regular meeting of the Board of Water Commissioners is scheduled for 
9:30 a.m., February 16, 2016 in the Margaret H. Chandler Water Reclamation Plant Conference 
Room, 399 Chandler Place, San Bernardino, California, 92408. 



MINUTES 
BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS 
OF THE CITY OF SAN BERNARDINO 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

January 19, 2016 
Water Reclamation Plant Conference Room 

399 Chandler Place 
San Bernardino, California 

9:30 a.m. 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Board of Water Commissioners of the City of San Bernardino was 
called to order by President Callicott at 9:34 a.m. on January 19, 2016 in the Water Reclamation 
Conference Room, 399 Chandler Place, San Bernardino, California. 
 

ROLL CALL:  Roll call was taken by the Secretary with the following being present: President 
Callicott; Commissioners Valles, and Fernández; staff Aldstadt, Ohama, Claus, Guerrero, 
Shepardson, and Willoughby; Henry Empeño, City Attorney’s Office; Steven Graham, City 
Attorney’s Office; Patrick Rogers, Information Technology Manager; Amy Smith, Executive 
Secretary. 
  
 Commissioner Mlynarski arrived at 9:36 a.m. 
 Commissioner Hendrix arrived at 11:00 a.m. 
 
 Members of the Public: Jose Martinez, East Valley Water District 

Thomas Ruiz,  Laborers’ International Union of    
North America 

  Kaitlyn Smith, Student 
   
1. CLOSED SESSION:  President Callicott adjourned the Regular Meeting of the Board of 

Water Commissioners to a Closed Session.  At 10:44 a.m., the Regular Meeting of the Board 
of Water Commissioners was recessed and a Closed Session was called to order in 
accordance with the following Government Code Sections: 
 
B. Conference with legal counsel – anticipated litigation – significant exposure to 

litigation – pursuant to Subdivision (b) (1), (2), (3) (A-F) of Government Code 
Section 54956.9. 

 
1. This item was moved from Item 1.C to 1.B. - Claim No. 15-141 – Spiess 

Construction Company, Inc. - upon motion by Commissioner Valles, duly 
seconded by Commissioner Fernández, it was unanimously voted to give 
settlement authority to special counsel regarding Claim No. 15-141.  

 
ROLL CALL:  Roll call was taken with the following present: President Callicott; 
Commissioners Valles, Fernández, and Mlynarski; staff Aldstadt, Ohama, Claus, Guerrero, 
Shepardson, and Willoughby; Henry Empeño, City Attorney’s Office; Amy Smith, Executive 
Secretary. 
 
 Absent: Commissioner Hendrix 
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ADJOURN CLOSED SESSION:  At 10:51 a.m., the Closed Session of the Board of Water 
Commissioners adjourned to the Regular Meeting of the Board of Water Commissioners in 
the Water Department Board Room. 
 
ROLL CALL:  Roll call was taken by the Secretary with the following being present: 
President Callicott; Commissioners Fernández, and Mlynarski; staff Aldstadt, Ohama, Claus, 
Guerrero, Shepardson, and Willoughby; Henry Empeño, City Attorney’s Office; Patrick 
Sanchez, Sr. Business Systems Analyst; Amy Smith, Executive Secretary. 
 
Absent: Commissioner Hendrix 
 

2. ANNOUNCEMENTS BY MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF WATER 
COMMISSIONERS:  None 

 
3. CONSENT CALENDAR: Upon motion by Commissioner Valles, duly seconded by 

Commissioner Fernández, it was voted to approve the following Consent Calendar, Agenda 
Items 3A through 3F: 

 
 A. WAIVE FULL READING OF RESOLUTIONS: Waive full reading of the 

resolutions on the regular or supplemental agendas of the Board of Water 
Commissioners. 

 
 B. PAYROLL 

 Water Fund Sewer Fund Total 
Claims: 267468-267718  
Accounts Payable $3,035,046.91 $1,369,266.29 $4,404,313.20
Gross Payroll: 12/14/15-
12/27/15 258,823.08 197,377.66 456,200.74

TOTALS $3,293,869.99 $1,566,643.95 $4,860,513.94  
 

Payroll for the pay periods December 14, 2015 through December 27, 2015; and 
December 28, 2015 through January 10, 2016. 

  
 C. CONTRACTS AND BILLS: Contracts and bills presented at this meeting. 
 

 D. MINUTES:  January 5, 2015 
 
 E. PERSONNEL ACTIONS:  
 

  1.  APPOINTMENT:  Maria Nazarian, Bilingual Customer Service Representative I, 
Section 2060, Range 133, effective January 19, 2016.  This position was in the 
budget and based on the needs and staffing for this section, the position was 
justifiable under the budget. 

 
  2. PROMOTION:  Ted Brunson, Engineering Technician, Range 147, to the 

position of Associate Engineer, Range 162, ratify effective January 18, 2016. This 
position was in the budget and based on the needs and staffing for this section, 
the position was justifiable under the budget. 
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 F. NOTICE OF COMPLETION – CONTRACT NO. 1616 – RIX TERTIARY 
FILTER PUMP SYSTEM MODIFICATIONS PROJECT (CO 00155):  The final 
acceptance date of October 15, 2015, directed staff to file a Notice of Completion, 
and release the retention in accordance with Contract No. 1616. 

 
END OF CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
4. ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA: None. 
 
5. APPROVAL OF EQUIPMENT PURCHASE AND INSTALLATION BY BEST PUMP 

AND DRILLING, INC. FOR MT. VERNON WELL REHABILITATION:   Water 
Department staff issued a Request for Qualifications under Specification No. 1640 – Well 
Rehabilitation Assessment and Repair in December 2014.  As a result, in February 2015, 
four (4) well rehabilitation contractors were pre-qualified.  Staff requested rehabilitation 
proposals for the Mt. Vernon Well from these pre-approved contractors.   

 
Rehabilitation of the Mt. Vernon Well was prompted by declining water levels in the 
groundwater basin due to the ongoing drought, equipment degradation, and a loss of 
efficiency.  Furthermore, during the design phase, it was discovered that the 83 year old well 
has a 20-foot vertical deviation, making the installation of an above ground vertical turbine 
pump very difficult, if not impossible. 

 
Best Pump and Drilling, Inc. was responsive and provided the lowest quotation in the 
amount of $73,543.00.  Due to the critical nature of this well with respect to its typical use 
and need for reliable water supply, staff requested Board approval of this work prior to staff 
procuring the equipment. 

 
Staff recommended that this expenditure be approved from existing funds in the FY 
2015/16 Capital Budget under Annual Well Rehabilitation (CO 10755) with available 
funding of approximately $463,000.00.  Furthermore, Southern California Edison would 
provide an incentive rebate to the Department upon project completion of approximately 
$11,500.00 to offset the capital costs. 
 
Upon motion by Commissioner Mlynarski, duly seconded by Commissioner Valles, it was 
unanimously voted to approve the equipment and installation from Best Pump and Drilling, 
Inc. in the amount of $73,543.00. 
 

6. DECEMBER 2015 DROUGHT MONITORING REPORT:  This report continued to 
monitor and track the effects of the ongoing drought by monitoring groundwater levels in 
select wells located in the Department’s service area.  The Board implemented Stage IIA 
extreme mandatory restrictions as a result of the State Water Resources Control Board 
(SWRCB) emergency regulations.  (INFORMATION ONLY) 

 
7. STRATEGIC PLANNING WORKSHOP:  The Board of Water Commissioners and Staff 

conducted a Strategic Planning Workshop to discuss future development for the Water 
Department. (INFORMATION ONLY) 

 
8. REPORTS: 
 

A. Report of the President: None 
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B. Report of the Commissioners: None 

 
C. Report of the Directors:  None 

 
D. Report of the General Manager:  
  
 General Manager Aldstadt congratulated Henry Empeño on his retirement from the 

City of San Bernardino City Attorney’s Office after 27 years of service effective 
February 15, 2016.  Mr. Empeño stated Steven Graham will be assigned to the Water 
Department as his replacement. 

  
9. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  This is the time specified for public comments concerning specific 

items not on the agenda or matters of general interest.  There being none, the matter was 
closed. 

 
10. ADJOURN MEETING: The meeting adjourned at 2:02 a.m. to the next Regular Meeting 

to be held on Tuesday, February 2, 2016, at 9:30 a.m. in Margaret H. Chandler Water 
Reclamation Plant Conference Room, 399 Chandler Place, San Bernardino, California, 
92408. 

 
 
   BY:      
    TONI CALLICOTT
    President 
 
BY:       
  ROBIN L. OHAMA 
  Deputy City Clerk & Ex-Officio Secretary 
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City of San Bernardino Municipal Water Department 
 

Mayor of the City of San Bernardino 
R. Carey Davis 

 

Board of Water Commissioners 
Toni Callicott, President 

David E. Mlynarski, Commissioner 
Dr. Louis A. Fernandez, Commissioner 

Wayne Hendrix, Commissioner 
Dr. Judith Valles, Commissioner 

Administration 
Stacey R. Aldstadt, General Manager 

Robin L. Ohama, Deputy General Manager 
Miguel Guerrero, Director of Water Utilities 

John A. Claus, Director of Water Reclamation 
Terri Willoughby, C.P.A., Director of Finance 

 
 

Mission Statement 
To meet our customer's needs by providing high-quality service in water supply, 
water reclamation and geothermal heating in the most professional and cost-
effective manner possible. 

 
Organization 

The City of San Bernardino Municipal Water Department was formed in 1905 
under the Charter of the City of San Bernardino.  The Department is governed by 
the Board of Water Commissioners who are appointed by the Mayor of the City of 
San Bernardino.  The Charter gives the Board of Water Commissioners semi-
autonomous authority to govern the Department independent of the City Council.  
The Department operates two enterprise funds: the Water Utility Enterprise Fund 
and the Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund.  Water service encompasses the City, with 
the exception of the east end, which is served by the East Valley Water District.  
Sewer service encompasses all of the City of San Bernardino, the City of Loma 
Linda, the former Norton Air Force Base, Patton State Hospital and portions of the 
areas serviced by East Valley Water District. 
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Board of Water Commissioners  
Municipal Water Department of the City of San Bernardino 
San Bernardino, California 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the  Municipal Water Department of the City 
of San Bernardino, California (“Department”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Department’s basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents.  

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.  

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 
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Board of Water Commissioners 
Municipal Water Department of the City of 
San Bernardino, California 
Page 2 of 3 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Municipal Water Department of the City of San Bernardino, California, as of 
June 30, 2015, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Emphasis of Matters 

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements of the Municipal Water Department of the City of San 
Bernardino (“Department”) are intended to present the financial position, the changes in financial 
position and cash flows of only that portion of the business-type activities and each major fund of the 
City of San Bernardino, California that are attributable to the transactions of the Department. They do 
not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the City of San Bernardino as of June 
30, 2015, the changes in its financial position, or its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  Our opinion is not 
modified with respect to this matter. 
 
On August 1, 2012, the City of San Bernardino filed a petition under Chapter 9 of the United States 
Bankruptcy Code seeking to adjust the timing and amount of the payments associated with the City’s 
obligations. As discussed in note two to the financial statements, there is considerable uncertainty 
associated with this process and the effects of this process upon the Department are not known at this 
time. 

The financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2015 reflect certain prior period adjustments as 
described further in Note 15 to the financial statements and Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statement No. 68 as described further in Note 7. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.  
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Board of Water Commissioners 
Municipal Water Department of the City of 
San Bernardino, California 
Page 3 of 3 
 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Department’s basic financial statements. The introductory section and the 
statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the 
basic financial statements. The introductory and the supplemental sections have not been subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 26, 
2016 on our consideration of the Department’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Department’s internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 

Irvine, California 
January 26, 2016 
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The City of San Bernardino’s Municipal Water Department (Department) is a  water and sewer treatment utility 

responsible for delivering high quality, economically priced water and sewer treatment service to a quarter of a 

million customers in and around the City of San Bernardino, California.  This section of the Department’s annual 

financial report presents managements analysis of the Department’s financial performance during the fiscal year 

that ended on June 30, 2015.  Please read it in conjunction with the basic financial statements, which follow this 

section.  All amounts in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis within text areas are in thousands unless 

otherwise noted. 

Financial Highlights 

New significant Accounting Standards implemented.  In fiscal year 2014-15, the Department adopted two new 

statements of financial accounting standards issued by the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 

that relate to pension activity: Statement No. 68, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions – an 

amendment of Statement No. 27,” and Statement No. 71, “Pension Transition for Contributions Made 

Subsequent to the Measurement Date-an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68.”.  Statement No. 68 

(Statement) establishes standards of accounting and financial reporting, but not funding or budgetary standards, 

for the Department’s defined benefit pension plans. This Statement replaces the requirements of prior GASB 

statements impacting accounting and disclosure of pensions. Statement No. 71 amends paragraph 137 of 

Statement 68 to require that, at transition, a government recognize a beginning deferred outflow of resources 

for its pension contributions, if any, made subsequent to the measurement date of the beginning net pension 

liability. Both Statements are to be applied simultaneously. 

The significant impact to the Department of implementing Statement No. 68 is the reporting of the 

Department’s pension liability on the Department’s financial statement.  There are also new note disclosures 

and required schedules as a result of implementing this Statement.  In order to implement the Statements, a 

prior period adjustment was made to the Department’s July 1, 2014 net position.  The prior period decreased 

the Department’s beginning net position by $49 million and reflects the reporting of: 1) net pension liabilities of 

$40.9 million, 2) deferred outflow of resources of $3 million and 3) deferred inflow of resources of $9.7 million.  

Other highlights: 

• The Department’s overall net position increased by $11.5 million. 

• Operating revenues decreased by slightly more than 7% from the prior year, primarily due to reduced 

water consumption. 

• Operating expenses decreased $2.9 million, or 5% from the prior fiscal year. 

• Net income/loss before capital contributions increased by $830,000. primarily due to a gain attributed 

to the investment in the RIX Joint Venture. 

• The Department’s current ratio (the ability to pay short-term obligations) was 2.48.  

•  Cash available (the ability to cover current expenses with cash) was 381 days. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

The discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Department’s basic financial 

statements.  The Department’s basic financial statements are comprised of two components: the Financial 

Statements and the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.  This report also contains other supplementary 

information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.  Information providing citywide financial 

results is available in the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 
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Required Financial Statements 

The financial statements of the Department report information about the Department using accounting 

methods similar to those used by private sector companies.  These statements offer short-term and long-term 

financial information about its activities. The Statement of Net Position (pages 14-15) includes all of the 

Department’s investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to creditors (liabilities). It also provides the 

basis for evaluating the capital structure of the Department and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of 

the Department.  All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of 

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (page 16) statement measures the success of the Department’s 

operations over the past year and can be used to determine whether the Department has successfully recovered 

all its costs through its user fees and other charges, profitability, and credit worthiness.  The final required 

financial statement is the Statement of Cash Flows (pages 17-18). The primary purpose of this statement is to 

provide information about the Department’s cash receipts and cash payments during the reporting period. The 

statement reports cash receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting from operations, investing, 

and financing activities and provides answers to such questions as where did cash come from, what was cash 

used for, and what was the change in cash balance during the reporting period. 

Financial Analysis of the Department 

Our analysis of the Department begins on page 14 of the financial statements.  One of the most important 

questions to ask about the Department’s finances is “Whether the Department, as a whole, is better off or 

worse off as a result of the year’s activities?”  The Statement of Net Position, and the Statement of Revenues, 

Expenses and Changes in Net Position report information about the Department’s activities in a way that will 

help answer this question. These two statements report the net position of the Department and changes in 

them. Measuring the change in the Department’s net position - the difference between assets and liabilities - is 

one way to measure financial health or financial position.  Over time, increases or decreases in the Department’s 

net assets are indications of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. However, one will need to 

consider other non-financial factors such as changes in economic conditions, population growth, zoning and new 

or changed government legislation. 

Water Utility Fund 

To begin our analysis, a summary of the Water Utility Fund’s Statements of Net Position is presented in Table A-

1. 
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As can be seen from the table above, the Water Utility net position decreased $23,715 to $151,810 in fiscal year 

2015.  The primary result of this decrease was a prior period adjustment of $27.9 million due to the 

implementation of new pension reporting standards related to the Department’s pension obligations. The net 

investment in capital assets increased $3.2 million in fiscal year 2015 due to the completion of capital projects 

within the period.  

2015 2014 $ Change % Change

Current and noncurrent assets 78,876$               77,056$               1,820$                 2.36%

Capital assets 188,080               185,851               2,228                   1.20%

Total assets 266,956               262,908               4,048                   1.54%

Deferred outflows of resources 1,698                   -                       1,698                   

Current liabilities 12,730                 9,208                   3,522                   38.24%

Noncurrent liabilities 98,612                 78,174                 20,439                 26.15%

Total liabilities 111,342               87,382                 23,960                 27.42%

Deferred inflows of resources 5,501                   0 5,501                   

Net investment in capital assets 166,963               163,797               3,166                   1.93%

Restricted -                       -                       -                       0.00%

Unrestricted (15,153)                11,728                 (26,881)                -229.20%

Total net position 151,810$             175,525$             (23,715)$              -13.51%

TABLE A-1

Condensed Statement of Net Position - Water Utility

(amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)
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Total revenues decreased by 13%, or $6.0 million, primarily due to decreased water revenues which resulted 

from decreased consumption after mandatory conservation regulations were imposed. Total expenses 

decreased almost 2% due to prudent cost control measures adopted by the Water Utility. 

 

Total capital assets increased $2.2 million in fiscal year 2015.  Approximately $8.4 million in construction in 

progress was completed and placed in service.  Major project completions include the North San Bernardino 

Industrial Park Phase II Pipe Installation project and the Irvington Avenue Transmission Main Project.   Additional 

information on capital assets is presented in Note 4 of the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements. 

2015 2014 $ Change % Change

Operating revenue 33,121$               36,672$               (3,551)$                -9.68%

Capital contributions 3,905                   6,522                   (2,616)                  -40.12%

Other non-operating revenue 2,872                   2,767                   106                       3.81%

Total revenues 39,898                 45,960                 (6,062)                  -13.19%

Operating expenses 35,505$               36,042$               (537)                     -1.49%

Non-operating expenses 169                       262                       (93)                        -35.41%

Total expenses 35,674                 36,303                 (630)                     -1.73%

Change in net position 4,225                   9,657                   (5,432)                  -56.25%

Net position, beginning balance 175,525               168,892               6,633                   3.93%

Prior period adjustment (27,940)                (3,023)                  (24,916)                N/A

Total net position 151,810$             175,525$             (23,715)$              -13.51%

TABLE A-2

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Water Utility

(amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

2015 2014 $ Change % Change

Land and easements 5,654$                 5,654$                 -$                     0.00%

Construction in progress 3,523                   6,224                   (2,701)                  -43.40%

Wells and pumping 98,173                 96,612                 1,561                   1.62%

Distribution 146,681               136,982               9,698                   7.08%

Plant and facilities 3,222                   3,097                   125                       4.03%

Other capital assets 15,827                 13,902                 1,925                   13.84%

Total capital assets 273,079               262,472               10,607                 4.04%

Less: accumulated depreciation (84,999)                (76,620)                (8,379)                  10.94%

Total capital assets, net 188,080$             185,851$             2,228$                 1.20%

TABLE A-3

Capital Assets - Water Utility

(amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)
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During the year, the Water Utility’s long-term debt decreased by $1.8 million which can be attributed to normal 

debt payments.  Additional information on long term debt is presented in Note 6 of the Notes to Basic Financial 

Statements. 

 

Sewer Utility Fund 

 

As can be seen from the table above, the Sewer Utility net position decreased $10.3 million to $91,387 in fiscal 

year 2015.  The primary result of this decrease was a prior period adjustment of $21.1 million due to the 

implementation of new pension reporting standards related to the Department’s pension obligations. The net 

investment in capital assets increased $18.3 million, due to the completion of several long-term capital projects 

within the period. 

2015 2014 $ Change % Change

Notes payable 21,117$               22,800$               (1,684)$                -7.39%

Compensated absences 942                       1,077                   (135)                     -12.51%

Total long-term debt 22,058$               23,877$               (1,819)$                -7.62%

TABLE A-4

Long-term Debt - Water Utility

(amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

2015 2014 $ Change % Change

Current and noncurrent assets 59,627$               66,773$               (7,146)$                -10.70%

Capital assets 64,146                 59,489                 4,657                   7.83%

Total assets 123,773               126,262               (2,489)                  -1.97%

Deferred outflow of resources 1,348                   -                       1,348                   -                       

Current liabilities 8,568                   7,435                   1,133                   15.24%

Noncurrent liabilities 21,015                 17,164                 3,851                   22.44%

Total liabilities 29,583                 24,599                 4,984                   20.26%

Deferred inflow of resources 4,150                   0 4,150                   -                       

Net investment in capital assets 56,090                 37,787                 18,303                 48.44%

Restricted 7,633                   7,348                   285                       3.88%

Unrestricted 27,664                 56,527                 (28,863)                -51.06%

Total net position 91,387$               101,662$             (10,275)$              -10.11%

TABLE B-1

Condensed Statement of Net Position - Sewer Utility

(amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)
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During Fiscal Year 2015, total revenues for the Sewer Utility decreased by less than 1% from the prior year, while 

total expenses decreased almost 17% during the same time period.  

 

 

Total capital assets increased by $8.6 in fiscal year 2015, with approximately $6.1 million in construction in 

progress completed and place in service.  Major project completions include the Bypass Line between Units 3 & 

1 and the Sludge Dewatering Centrifuge projects.  One of the major projects still in progress is the Unit 1 Primary 

Clarifier and Aeration System Upgrade project.  More information relating to capital assets can be found in note 

4 of the notes to the financial statements. 

2015 2014 $ Change % Change

Operating revenue 24,734$               25,671$               (936)$                   -3.65%

Capital contributions 1,073                   989                       84                         8.46%

Other non-operating revenue 1,326                   667                       659                       98.93%

Total revenues 27,133                 27,327                 (193)                     -0.71%

Operating expenses 19,620                 21,974                 (2,354)                  -10.71%

Non-operating expenses 227                       1,796                   (1,569)                  -87.35%

Total expenses 19,847                 23,770                 (3,922)                  -16.50%

Change in net position 7,286                   3,557                   3,729                   104.84%

Net position, beginning balance 105,178               108,296               (3,117)                  -2.88%

Prior period adjustment (21,077)                (6,674)                  (14,403)                -215.80%

Total net position 91,387$               105,178$             (13,791)$              -13.11%

TABLE B-2

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Sewer Utility

(amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

2015 2014 $ Change % Change

Land and easements 12,168$               11,482$               686$                    5.98%

Construction in progress 13,934                 9,408                   4,526                   48.11%

Pumping 3,192                   1,360                   1,833                   134.81%

Buildings, plants and stores 129,866               120,109               9,757                   8.12%

Field and office equipment 5,866                   5,601                   265                       4.73%

Total capital assets 165,026               147,959               17,067                 11.53%

Less: accumulated depreciation (100,880)              (92,427)                (8,453)                  9.15%

Total net assets 64,146$               55,533$               8,613$                 15.51%

TABLE B-3

Capital Assets - Sewer Utility

(amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)
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During the year, the Sewer Utility’s long-term debt decreased $4.7 million which can be attributed to normal 

debt payments.  Additional information on long term debt is presented in Note 6 of the Notes to Basic Financial 

Statements.   

Management Challenges and Opportunities 

Economics 

The ongoing economic downturn continues to limit the planned capital expansion of the water and sewer 

treatment facilities.  Development in San Bernardino has significantly slowed and delinquencies continue.  

Additionally, the fiscal challenges of the City as a whole hinder progress within the Water Department.  

However, as the local economy begins to improve, the Department’s customer base should improve and the 

delinquency rate should return to pre-recession levels.   

Capital Construction 

The Sewer Utility faces an extensive list of compliance-related construction requirements over the next several 

years, and is also rehabilitating facilities and designing/constructing Primary Influent Flow Equalization. The 

Water Utility continues to concentrate on retrofitting and upgrading existing facilities to current design 

standards and Uniform Building Codes (UBC) as well as replace aging pipelines, wells and plant facilities.   

Rates 

The Department implemented the last of a three-phase water utility rate increase and the last of a two-phase 

increase to sewer treatment rates in January 2012.  A three-phase sewer treatment rate increase was approved 

in September 2015, and will be effective through 2017. The Department continues to review revenue and 

expense levels to determine when rate increases will be necessary. 

Contacting the Department’s Director of Finance 

This financial report is designed to provide our customers and creditors with a general overview of the 

Department finances and to demonstrate the Department’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have 

questions about this report or need additional financial information, please contact the Department’s Director 

of Finance at (909) 384-5184.  For information on the City of San Bernardino’s financial statements, please 

contact the City’s finance department at (909) 384-5242. 

 

2015 2014 $ Change % Change

Notes payable 1,710$                 3,374$                 (1,664)$                -49.33%

Certificates of participation 6,346                   9,292                   (2,946)                  -31.70%

Compensated absences 284                       367                       (82)                        -22.48%

Total long-term debt 8,340$                 13,033$               (4,693)$                -36.01%

TABLE B-4

Long-term Debt - Sewer Utility

(amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)
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CITY OF SAN BERNARDINO MUNICIPAL WATER DEPARTMENT

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2015

Water Sewer Interfund

Utility Utility Eliminations Total

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and investments (note 3) 17,789,720$   22,926,544     -                 40,716,264       

Accounts receivable, net 6,365,070       2,462,691       (7,803)            8,819,958         

Interest receivable 11,684            136,051          -                 147,735            

Due from other entities 599,163          164,668          -                 763,831            

Inventory 1,991,313       -                  -                 1,991,313         

Current portion of prepaid expenses 297,911          139,577          -                 437,488            

Total current assets 27,054,861     25,829,531     (7,803)            52,876,589       

Noncurrent assets:

Prepaid expenses -                  681,663          -                 681,663            

Investment in joint venture - RIX (note 10) -                  21,887,814     -                 21,887,814       

Investment in joint venture - PSA (note 10) -                  3,594,562       -                 3,594,562         

Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents (note 3):

Restricted for capital-related fees -                  7,633,049       -                 7,633,049         

Restricted for consent decree (notes 3 & 13) 528,651          -                  -                 528,651            

Investments (note 3):

Restricted for consent decree (note 13) 21,125,203     -                  -                 21,125,203       

Interest receivable - consent decree (note 13) 65,494            -                  -                 65,494              

Prepaid insurance - consent decree (note 13) 30,101,766     -                  -                 30,101,766       

Capital assets (note 4): 

Non-depreciable assets 9,177,446       26,102,047     -                 35,279,493       

Depreciable assets 263,901,535   138,924,135   -                 402,825,670     

Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (84,999,216)    (100,880,133)  -                 (185,879,349)    

Total capital assets (net) 188,079,765   64,146,049     -                 252,225,814     

Total noncurrent assets 239,900,879   97,943,137     -                 337,844,016     

Total assets 266,955,740   123,772,668   (7,803)            390,720,605     

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES

Deferred charge on refunding -                      66,698            -                 66,698              

Deferred pension contributions (note 7) 1,698,121       1,281,039       -                 2,979,160         

Total deferred outflow of resources 1,698,121       1,347,737       -                     3,045,858         

(continued on next page)

See accompanying independent auditor' report and notes to the basic financial statements
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CITY OF SAN BERNARDINO MUNICIPAL WATER DEPARTMENT

Statement of Net Position, continued

June 30, 2015

Water Sewer Interfund

Utility Utility Eliminations Total

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 4,674,430           2,355,339        (7,803)            7,021,966        

Related parties payable (note 9) 2,655,137           265,300           -                 2,920,437        

Accrued compensation 860,556              470,786           -                 1,331,342        

Claims payable (note 11) 1,213,539           239,673           -                 1,453,212        

Consumer deposits 583,345              -                    -                 583,345           

Current portion of compensated absences (note 6) 753,511              227,394           -                 980,905           

Current portion of notes payable (note 6) 1,748,054           1,709,710        -                 3,457,764        

Current portion of certificates of participation (note 6) -                           3,155,000        -                 3,155,000        

Accrued interest payable 241,369              144,780           -                 386,149           

Total current liabilities 12,729,941         8,567,982        (7,803)            21,290,120      

Noncurrent liabilities:

Consumer deposits 3,274,097           -                    -                 3,274,097        

Compensated absences (note 6) 188,378              56,848              -                 245,226           

Unearned revenue - consent decree (note 13) 51,821,114         -                    -                 51,821,114      

Notes payable (note 6) 19,368,473         -                    -                 19,368,473      

Certificates of participation (note 6) -                       3,191,308        -                 3,191,308        

OPEB obligation (note 8) 628,895              166,326           -                 795,221           

Net pension liabilities (note 7) 23,331,467         17,600,931      -                 40,932,398      

Total noncurrent liabilities 98,612,424         21,015,413      -                 119,627,837    

Total liabilities 111,342,365       29,583,395      (7,803)            140,917,957    

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES

Deferred inflows - actuarial (note 7) 5,501,195           4,150,024        -                 9,651,219        

Total deferred inflow of resources 5,501,195           4,150,024        -                 9,651,219        

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets (note 14) 166,963,238       56,090,031      -                 223,053,269    

Restricted for capital-related fees (note 14) -                           7,633,049        -                 7,633,049        

Unrestricted (note 14) (15,152,937)       27,663,906      -                 12,510,969      

Total net position 151,810,301$    91,386,986      -                 243,197,287    

See accompanying independent auditor' report and notes to the basic financial statements
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CITY OF SAN BERNARDINO MUNICIPAL WATER DEPARTMENT

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Water Sewer Interfund

Utility Utility Eliminations Total

Operating revenues:

Charges for services 32,334,810$       24,399,415           -                  56,734,225      

Other operating revenues 786,318               335,010                 (38,004)          1,083,324         

Total operating revenues 33,121,128         24,734,425           (38,004)          57,817,549      

Operating expenses

Administration and customer service 6,575,895            2,387,122             -                  8,963,017         

Utility administration 653,209               638,613                 -                  1,291,822         

Plant operations 7,813,911            8,697,724             -                  16,511,635      

Maintenance 1,988,719            2,906,853             (15,173)          4,880,399         

Environmental control -                             594,777                 -                  594,777            

Distribution 4,653,106            -                          -                  4,653,106         

Engineering and water quality control 2,439,170            534,226                 -                  2,973,396         

General, administration and overhead 6,015,448            990,463                 (22,831)          6,983,080         

Depreciation and amortization 5,365,124            2,870,550             -                  8,235,674         

Total operating expenses 35,504,582         19,620,328           (38,004)          55,086,906      

Operating income (loss) (2,383,454)          5,114,097             -                  2,730,643         

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Investment income 54,786                 481,211                 -                  535,997            

Rental income 181,809               700                         -                  182,509            

Noncapital grant funds 2,089,637            -                          -                  2,089,637         

Gain (loss) on asset disposition -                        -                          -                  -                          

Gain (loss) on joint venture - RIX -                        345,884                 -                  345,884            

Interest expense and fiscal charges (169,119)              (227,165)               -                  (396,284)           

Other 545,840               498,247                 -                  1,044,087         

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 2,702,953            1,098,877             -                  3,801,830         

Net income (loss) before capital contributions 319,499               6,212,974             -                  6,532,473         

Capital contributions:

Acquisition fees 1,631,678            -                          -                  1,631,678         

Capacity fees 2,187,090            938,131                 -                  3,125,221         

EPA grants 86,336                 -                          -                  86,336              

Other capital restricted fees -                        134,710                 -                  134,710            

Total capital contributions 3,905,104            1,072,841             -                  4,977,945         

Change in net position 4,224,603            7,285,815             -                  11,510,418      

Net position, beginning of year, as restated (footnote 15) 147,585,698       84,101,171           -                  231,686,869    

Net position, end of year 151,810,301$     91,386,986           -                  243,197,287    

See accompanying independent auditor' report and notes to the basic financial statements
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CITY OF SAN BERNARDINO MUNICIPAL WATER DEPARTMENT

Statement of Cash Flows

Fiscal Year EndedJune 30, 2015

Water Sewer Interfund

Utility Utility Eliminations Total

Cash flow from operating activities:

Cash received from customers 35,650,068$      26,242,134    -                 61,892,202    

Rental income 181,809              700                 -                 182,509         

Nonoperating miscellaneous revenue (expenses) 545,840              498,247         -                 1,044,087      

Cash  paid to employees for services (9,233,112)         (5,914,404)     -                 (15,147,516)   

Cash paid to suppliers of goods and services (18,568,787)       (11,816,350)   -                 (30,385,137)   

Net cash provided by operating activities 8,575,818          9,010,327      -                 17,586,145    

Cash flow from noncapital financing activities:

Cash paid to RIX joint venture -                      -                  -                 -                  

Consent Decree insurance drawdowns 2,089,637          -                  -                 2,089,637      

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 2,089,637          -                  -                 2,089,637      

Cash flow from capital and related financing activities:

Capital fees received 3,818,768          1,072,841      -                 4,891,609      

Drawdown on CIEDB loan 746,201              -                  -                 746,201         

Cash paid to acquire capital assets (7,584,022)         (11,483,816)   -                 (19,067,838)   

Principal paid on capital-related debt (1,683,818)         (4,629,425)     -                 (6,313,243)     

Interest paid on capital-related debt (187,153)            (242,585)        -                 (429,738)        

Grant proceeds 86,336                -                  -                 86,336            

Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related

financing activities (4,803,688)         (15,282,985)   -                 (20,086,673)   

Cash flow from investing activities:

Purchase of investments (17,210,432)       (11,877,148)   -                 (29,087,580)   

Sales and maturities of investments 17,599,300        11,588,638    -                 29,187,938    

Interest received 53,683                480,453         -                 534,136         

Net cash provided by investing activities 442,551              191,943         -                 634,494         

Net increase (decrease) in cash 6,304,318          (6,080,715)     -                 223,603         

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 7,987,773          12,699,727    -                 20,687,500    

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 14,292,091$      6,619,012      -                 20,911,103    

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to amounts

reported on the statement of net position:

Cash and investments 17,789,720$      22,926,544    -                 40,716,264    

Restricted cash and cash equivalents:

Restricted for capital related fees -                      7,633,049      -                 7,633,049      

Restricted for consent decree 528,651              -                  -                 528,651         

Less those not meeting the definition of a cash equivalent (4,026,280)         (23,940,581)   

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 14,292,091$      6,619,012      -                 48,877,964    

(continued on next page)
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CITY OF SAN BERNARDINO MUNICIPAL WATER DEPARTMENT

Statement of Cash Flows, continued

June 30, 2015

Water Sewer Interfund

Utility Utility Eliminations Total

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash

provided by (used for) operating activities:

Operating income (loss) (2,383,454)$     5,114,097      -                 2,730,643       

Depreciation and amortization 5,355,684         2,870,550      -                 8,226,234       

Nonoperating miscellaneous revenue (expenses) 545,840            498,247         -                 1,044,087       

Rental income 181,809            700                 -                 182,509          

Adjustments

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 1,262,291         1,578,275      -                 2,840,566       

(Increase) decrease in due from other entities 992,197            65,792            -                 1,057,989       

(Increase) decrease in inventory (300,570)          -                  -                 (300,570)         

(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses (86,465)             5,646              -                 (80,819)           

(Increase) decrease in deferred pension contributions (178,081)          (134,342)        -                 (312,423)         

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 2,163,224         (625,397)        -                 1,537,827       

Increase (decrease) in related parties payable 371,762            (3,313)            -                 368,449          

Increase (decrease) in accrued compensation 304,337            133,737         -                 438,074          

Increase (decrease) in compensated absences

current portion 1,323,776         7,174              -                 1,330,950       

Increase (decrease) in compensated absences

non-current portion (1,458,478)       (89,599)          -                 (1,548,077)     

Increase (decrease) in claims payable 482,043            (28,434)          -                 453,609          

Increase (decrease) in consumer deposits

current portion 81,047              -                  -                 81,047            

Increase (decrease) in consumer deposits

non-current portion 193,405            -                  -                 193,405          

Increase (decrease) in OPEB obligation 352,488            90,223            -                 442,711          

Increase (decrease) in net pension liability (6,128,232)       (4,623,053)     -                 (10,751,285)   

Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows-actuarial 5,501,195         4,150,024      -                 9,651,219       

Net cash provided by operating activities 8,575,818$      9,010,327      -                 17,586,145     

There were no significant noncash investing, capital and financing related activties for the year ended June 30, 2015. 

See accompanying independent auditor' report and notes to the basic financial statements
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(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

A. Organization and Operations of the Reporting Entity 

The San Bernardino Municipal Water Department (Department) is governed under the Charter of the City of San 

Bernardino (City).  A Board of Water Commissioners (BOWC) appointed by the Mayor and approved by City 

Council, has Charter defined powers, with full authority for administration of the water utility and delegated 

authority for the sewer treatment utility. The Department has served the community since 1905. 

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus 

The Department reports its activities as enterprise funds, which are used to account for operations that are 

financed and operated in a manner similar to a private business enterprise, where the intent of the Department 

is that the costs (including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing 

basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges. Revenues and expenses are recognized on the 

accrual basis.  Revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they are earned and expenses are 

recognized in the period incurred, regardless of when the related cash flow takes place. 

Operating revenues, such as charges for services (water sales, sewer services and water services) result from 

exchange transactions associated with the principal activity of the Department. Exchange transactions are those 

in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as property 

taxes and investment income, result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities in which the 

Department gives (receives) value without directly receiving (giving) equal value in exchange. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, the Department uses restricted resources 

and then unrestricted resources. 

The funds of the Department are described below: 

Water Utility Fund – The Water Utility Enterprise Fund (Water Utility) is used to account for the operations 

of the Department’s water system and related revenues. 

Sewer Utility Fund – The Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund (Sewer Utility) is used to account for the operations 

of the City’s wastewater treatment system and related revenues.  The Sewer conveyance system is under 

the direction of the City’s Public Works Department. 

Administrative and engineering services are provided by the Water Utility to the Sewer Utility.  Electrical services 

are provided by the Sewer Utility to the Water Utility. 

C. Implementation of GASB Pronouncements 

In June 2012, the GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions – An 

Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27.  The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and 

financial reporting for pensions.  The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for 

periods beginning after June 30, 2014.  The Department implemented this Statement in the fiscal year ending 

June 30, 2015.   

In 2014, the GASB issued Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the 

Measurement Date – an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 68.  The objective of this Statement is to address 

an issue regarding application of the transition provisions of Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial 

Reporting for Pensions.  The provision of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods 

beginning after June 15, 2014.  The Department implemented this Statement in the fiscal year ending June 30, 

2015.     

Accounting changes adopted to conform to the provisions of these statements should be applied retroactively.  

The result of the implementation of these standards decreased the net position at July 1, 2014 by $49,016,946.  

See footnotes 8 and 15 for further information. 
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(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

D.  Financial Reporting 

The Department’s basic financial statements are presented in conformance with the provisions of Governmental  

Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, “Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s 

Discussion and Analysis – for State and Local Governments” (GASB No. 34). This statement established revised 

financial reporting requirements for state and local governments throughout the United States for the purpose 

of enhancing the understandability and usefulness of financial reports.  

GASB No. 34 and its related GASB pronouncements provide for a revised view of financial information and 

restructure the format of financial information provided prior to its adoption. A statement of net position 

replaces the balance sheet and reports assets, liabilities, and the difference between them as net position, not 

equity. A statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position replaces both the income statement and 

the statement of changes in retained earnings and contributed capital. GASB No. 34 also requires that the 

statement of cash flows be prepared using the direct method. Under the direct method, cash flows from 

operating activities are presented by major categories.  

E. Assets, Liabilities and Net Position 

1. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 

principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 

assets, liabilities, and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, 

and the reported changes in net position during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 

estimates. 

1. Cash and Investments 

 For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments 

(including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when purchased. 

Investments are reported in the accompanying balance sheet at fair value, except for certain certificates of 

deposit and investment contracts that are reported at cost as they are not transferable and have terms that 

are not affected by changes in market interest rates. 

Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as investment income reported for that 

fiscal year.  Investment income includes interest earnings, changes in fair value and any gains or losses 

realized upon the liquidation of investments.   

2. Accounts Receivable 

Customer or trade receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts based on historical 

and management estimates.  Transactions between funds that are representative of lending or borrowing 

arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as “interfund receivables / payables” 

or “advances to/from” other funds.  All interfund transactions are eliminated for financial reporting. 

3. Inventory 

Materials and supplies inventory consists primarily of water meters, pipe and pipefittings for construction 

and repair to the Department’s water transmission and distribution system and items necessary for 

maintenance at the sewer treatment facilities.  Inventory is valued at cost using a weighted average method. 

Inventory items are charged to expense at the time that individual items are withdrawn from inventory or 

consumed. 
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(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

E. Assets, Liabilities and Net Position, continued 

4. Prepaid Expense and Deposit 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs or deposits applicable to future accounting periods and are 

recorded as prepaid items in the basic financial statements. 

5. Capital Assets 

Capital assets acquired or constructed are capitalized at historic cost.  Department policy has set the 

capitalization threshold for reporting capital assets at $5,000 and a life expectancy of at least 3 years.  

Overhead is capitalized at the rate of 28.9% of labor and benefits, 10% of material and supplies and 2% of 

significant contracts. Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the 

assets as follows: 

• Source of supply plant    8 to 50 years 

• Disposal plant and interceptor lines  35 to 50 years 

• Other facilities (shops, leasehold & yards) 5 to 25 years 

• Tools, office equipment & communications 4 to 20 years 

• Computer equipment    3 to 5 years 

• Automotive and fleet equipment  3 to 15 years 

6. Compensated Absences 

Department policy is to permit employees to accumulate a limited amount of earned vacation and sick 

leave.  Various negotiation groups have different sell-back and cash out options.  Additionally, cash out 

options upon retirement or death of the employee vary based on the negotiation group.  Employees’ 

vacation and sick leave benefits are recognized as a liability of the Department.  

7. Restricted Assets and Amounts Payable from Restricted Assets 

Amounts shown as restricted assets have been restricted by bond indentures or are to be used for specified 

purposes based on contract provisions, such as bonded debt service.  Certain liabilities which are currently 

payable have been classified as current liabilities payable from restricted assets since assets have been 

restricted for their payment. 

8. Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to 

pensions, pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position and additions to/deductions from 

the fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the 

Department. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are 

recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair 

value. 

 

GASB 68 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within certain 

defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used: 

 

 Valuation Date (VD)  June 30, 2013 

 Measurement Date (MD) June 30, 2014 

 Measurement Period (MP) June 30, 2013 to June 30, 2014 
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(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

E. Assets, Liabilities and Net Position, continued 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows  

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section of deferred 

outflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, 

represents consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an 

outflow of resources (expenses/expenditures) until then.  The Department has two items that qualify for 

reporting in this category:  the deferred outflows on pension contributions, and the deferred charges on 

debt refundings.  These are reported on the Statement of Net Position. 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 

deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 

represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and will not be recognized as inflow 

of resources (revenue) until that time.  The District has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category, 

deferred inflow – actuarial. 

9. Interfund Eliminations 

The interfund eliminations column represents entries made to eliminate interfund income and expenditure 

transactions between the water utility fund and the sewer utility fund for the purposes of consolidated 

financial statements. 

10. Net Position 

The financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net position is categorized as follows: 

• Net Investment in Capital Assets – This component of net position consists of capital assets, net of 

accumulated depreciation and reduced by any debt outstanding against the acquisition, 

construction or improvement of those assets. 

• Restricted Net Position – This component of net position consists of constraints placed on net 

position use through external constraints imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or 

regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or 

enabling legislation. 

• Unrestricted Net Position – This component of net position consists of net position that does not 

meet the definition of restricted or net investment in capital assets. 

11. Capital Contributions 

Contributions in aid of construction represent cash and utility plant additions contributed to the Department 

by property owners or developers desiring services that require capital expenditures or capacity 

commitment. In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 33, the capital 

contributions are recorded on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net position. 

12. Budgetary Policies 

The Department adopts an annual budget for planning, control, and evaluation purposes. Budgetary control 

and evaluation are affected by comparisons of actual revenues and expenses with planned revenues and 

expenses for the period. Encumbrance accounting is not used to account for commitments related to 

outstanding contracts for construction and services. 
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(2) City of San Bernardino Bankruptcy 

Without reserves and facing a $45.8 million budget deficit, in July of 2012, the City determined that it was no 

longer able to meet its contractual obligations and declared a fiscal emergency.  On August 1, 2012, the City filed 

a petition under Chapter 9 of the United States Bankruptcy Code in Riverside seeking to adjust its debts.  On 

August 28, 2013, the Bankruptcy Court ruled that the City is eligible for bankruptcy protection. 

Based on the California Constitution, precedents established in prior municipal bankruptcies in California, and 

various legal opinions provided to the Department by special legal counsel and the City Attorney’s office, the 

Department believes that its revenues, derived from ratepayer fees, will be protected from attachment by the 

City’s creditors. Although unlikely, it is possible that the bankruptcy court will make a different determination. 

The Department’s arguments for the protection of its assets from the claims of the City’s creditors are set forth 

in further detail below. 

The bankruptcy case seeks the adjustment of the obligations of the City and does not extend to City funds with 

Federal, State or other restrictions.  The Department has continued to operate and use its restricted resources 

for only the expenses incurred to operate the water system and sewer treatment plants.  Debt obligations 

secured by Department revenues are treated as secured obligations and are not expected to be affected so long 

as the revenues of the Department are sufficient to meet debt service. 

State and federal laws place protections on the revenues of the Department.  Section 902(2) of the Bankruptcy 

Code defines special revenues as, among other things, “receipts derived from the ownership, operation, or 

disposition of projects or systems of the debtor that are primarily used or intended to be used primarily to 

provide transportation, utility, or other services, including the proceeds of borrowings to finance the projects or 

systems.”  Further, section 928 of the Bankruptcy Code states: “(a) Notwithstanding section 552 (a) of this title 

and subject to subsection (b) of this section, special revenues acquired by the debtor after the commencement 

of the case shall remain subject to any lien resulting from any security agreement entered into by the debtor 

before the commencement of the case”; and “(b) Any such lien on special revenues, other than municipal 

betterment assessments, derived from a project or system shall be subject to the necessary operating expenses 

of such project or system, as the case may be.” 

Chapter 9 of the Bankruptcy Code does not have a provision for liquidation of assets of the City and distribution 

of the proceeds to creditors.  Additionally, Chapter 9 does not prevent a debtor from borrowing additional funds 

while under bankruptcy protection.  The Tenth Amendment of the United States Constitution and Supreme 

Court decisions in upholding municipal bankruptcy legislation place severe limitations upon the power of the 

bankruptcy court in chapter 9 cases. 

In addition, at least two aspects of California law place restrictions on the use of revenue of the Department. 

First, under Articles XIIIC and XIIID of the California Constitution (enacted pursuant to the voter approved 

Proposition 218), money raised from municipal utility rates must only be used to fund such utility operations, 

and not to fund general municipal operations.  Thus, when the Department charges a water delivery or 

consumption fee, or rates for wastewater services, and places those monies into its specially segregated Water 

Fund and Sewer Fund accounts, those charges are considered property-related fees and are subject to the 

constitutional constraints enacted pursuant to Proposition 218.  This has very specific consequences for the 

amount of money that can be collected, as well as the use to which those funds can be put.  Specifically, Cal. 

Const. Article XIII D section 6(b) states that: 
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(2) City of San Bernardino Bankruptcy, continued 

A fee or charge shall not be extended, imposed, or increased by any agency unless it meets all of the following 

requirements: 

(1) Revenues derived from the fee or charge shall not exceed the funds required to provide the 

property related service. 

(2) Revenues derived from the fee or charge shall not be used for any purpose other than that for 

which the fee or charge was imposed. 

(3) The amount of a fee or charge imposed upon any parcel or person as an incident of property 

ownership shall not exceed the proportional cost of the service attributable to the parcel. 

. . . 

 (5) No fee or charge may be imposed for general governmental services including, but not limited 

to, police, fire, ambulance or library services, where the service is available to the public at large in 

substantially the same manner as it is to property owners.  (Cal Const, Art. XIII D § 6.) 

Put differently, use of fees for general governmental services is prohibited, fees can only be for the service 

provided, fees cannot exceed the cost of that service, and fees cannot exceed the proportional cost of the 

service attributable the payer.1   

The second relevant aspect of state law is the City’s status as a Charter City.  Under California law a city charter 

is “the supreme law of the City,” but is still subject to “conflicting provisions in the federal and state 

Constitutions and to preemptive state law.”  (Howard Jarvis Taxpayers Assn. v. City of Roseville (2003) 106 

Cal.App.4th 1178, 1186, citing Domar Electric, Inc. v. City of Los Angeles (1994) 9 Cal.4th 161, 170.)  The 

Department was created by and currently operates pursuant to Article IX of the City’s Charter, and provides 

both retail water and sewer service pursuant to the City Charter provisions.  Specifically, Article IX, Section 164 

of the City Charter provides that the Water Department Board of Commissioners, and not the City Council, “ . . 

shall have power to control and order the expenditure of all money received from sale or use of water, for the 

defraying of expenses or maintenance and repairs and operation of the water system, and for any expenses for 

additions to the same; and for supplying the City with water for any and all purposes; provided that all such 

money shall be deposited in the treasury of the City to the credit of a fund to be known as the Water Fund, and 

shall be kept separate and apart from other moneys of the City . . .” (emphasis added).  Consistent with the 

discussion above, the constitutional requirements under Proposition 218 apply to “counties, cities, cities and 

counties, including charter cities or counties, any special district, or other local or regional governmental entity.  

(Cal. Const., art. XIIIC, § 1(b), emphasis added.)  Courts have routinely held that “[t]here is no question that 

Proposition 218, as a constitutional initiative, is binding upon charter cities.”  (Howard Jarvis Taxpayers Assn. v. 

City of Roseville (2003) 106 Cal.App.4th 1178, 1185.)  In order to provide for the safety of the Department’s 

liquid assets, the Department established its own bank account and investment portfolio within the City treasury 

as required by the City Charter.  Representatives of the City Treasurer’s office and the Water Department are 

signatories to these accounts.  As previously noted, the City Charter specifically grants to the Water Department 

Board of Commissioners the power to control and order the expenditure of these funds and limits the 

withdrawal of these funds for the payment of demands authenticated by the Board of Commissioners. 

  

                                                 

 
1  See League of California Cities, Proposition 218 Implementation Guide (2007 Ed.) at pp. 49-50; see also Howard Jarvis Taxpayers Ass’n v. City 

of Roseville (2002) 97 Cal.App.4th 637, 647-648 [interpreting Art. XIIID, § 6(b) and emphasizing, “[t] he key is that the revenues derived from the fee or 

charge are required to provide the service, and may be used only for the service.”]   
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(2) City of San Bernardino Bankruptcy, continued 

Accordingly, both the City Charter and the California Constitution require that the Department’s special 

revenues collected for water-related services may only be used for expenditures related to those services.  Due 

to these additional state law restrictions, the Department believes that the revenues of the Department (and 

accumulated assets since those assets were accumulated as a result of collection of revenue) can only be used 

for Department expenses and obligations. 

On October 16, 2013, Bankruptcy Judge Meredith Jury issued an opinion on the City’s eligibility for bankruptcy.  

“…CalPERS submits that the uncontroverted fact that the City’s Water Fund had a large cash balance before and 

after the petition date which the City did not tap to attempt to balance its books is evidence of lack of desire to 

effect a plan. This argument has no legal legs. It is a matter of California constitutional law that the City may not 

use funds belonging to the Water Department for general fund purposes. Amendments to the Constitution 

enacted by Proposition 218 in 1996, which added Articles XIIIC and XIIID, expanded restrictions on local 

government revenue-raising and imposed limitations on local government use of special fees, including water 

and sewer fees. C.A. Const. art. XIIIC and XIIID. Article XIIID covers water fees and prohibits the use of such fees 

for general governmental services, including police, fire and other services. Bighorn Desert View Water Agency v. 

Verjil, 39 Cal. 4th 205, 216-17 (2006); Richmond v. Shasta Cmty. Servs. Dist., 32 Cal. 4th 409 (2004). Thus, the 

City was legally prohibited by the California Constitution from using Water Department funds for general fund 

purposes. 

“Similarly, the City could not have borrowed funds from the Water Department without incurring debt that it 

could not repay within one year. Article XVI, Section 18 of the Constitution prohibits the City from incurring a 

debt in any year that exceeds the available revenues of the City for that year without the approval of a two-

thirds vote of qualified voters. C.A. Const. art. XVI, § 18. Looking at its dire financial status in July 2012, the City 

could not reasonably conclude that it would be able to repay to the Water Fund any loans it made within that 

fiscal year. The Water Fund cash was thereby out of reach to address the City’s insolvency and this issue is an 

outlier to the Court’s analysis.” (Case No.: RS 6: 12-bk-28006 MJ). 

(3) Cash and Investments 

Cash and investments are reported in the accompanying statement of net position as follows: 

 

 

 

 



CITY OF SAN BERNARDINO MUNICIPAL WATER DEPARTMENT 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 

26 
 

(3) Cash and Investments, continued 

Cash and investments at June 30, 2015 consisted of the following: 

 

 

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the Department’s Investment Policy  

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized by the Department and Consent Decree 

(see note 13) in accordance with the California Government Code (or the City’s investment policy, where more 

restrictive). The table also identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the City’s 

investment policy, where more restrictive) that addresses interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of 

credit risk.  Due to its long-term nature, the Consent Decree has been explicitly exempted from maximum 

maturity requirements of the California Government Code, which limits maturity of most investments to five 

years.  All other aspects of the Consent Decree investment policy are consistent with the City’s investment 

policy. 

 

Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements 

Investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee are governed by provisions of the debt agreements, rather 

than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the City’s investment policy. Investments 

authorized for funds held by bond trustee include, U.S. Treasury Obligations, U.S. Government Sponsored 

Enterprise Securities, the California Local Agency Investment Fund, Guaranteed Investment Contracts, 

Commercial Paper, Local Agency Bonds, Banker’s Acceptance and Money Market Mutual Funds. There are no 

limitations on the maximum amount that can be invested in one issuer, maximum percentage allowed or the 

maximum maturity of an investment, except for the maturity of Banker’s Acceptance which are limited to one 

year. 

Maximum % Maximum %

Investment Type* Department Consent Decree of Portfolio in One Issuer

US treasury 5 years None None None

US agency 5 years None None None

Bankers acceptances 180 days 180 days 40% 30%

Commercial paper 270 days 270 days 25% 10%

Negotiable CDs 5 years None 30% None

Medium-term notes 5 years None 30% None

Money market mutual funds N/A N/A 20% 10%

Mortgage pass through 5 years None 20% None

Local Agency Investment Fund N/A N/A $40,000,000 None

Guaranteed investment N/A N/A None None

* - Excluding amounts held by bond trustee that are not subject to California Government Code restrictions.

Maximum Maturity
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(3) Cash and Investments, continued 

Custodial Credit Risk  

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a 

government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in 

the possession of an outside party.  The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the 

failure of the counterparty to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment 

or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party.  The California Government Code requires 

that a financial institution secure deposits made by a state or local governmental units by pledging securities in 

an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law. 

The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount 

deposited by the public agencies.  California law also allows financial institutions to secure the Department’s 

deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits. 

For investment identified herein as held by bond trustee, the bond trustee selects the investment under the 

terms of the applicable trust agreement, acquires the investment, and holds the investment on behalf of the 

reporting government.  

Investment in State Investment Pool 

The Department is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by the 

California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value of the 

Department’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based 

upon the Department’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation 

to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records 

maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.  LAIF is not rated by a nationally recognized 

statistical rating organization, but, as stated previously, it is regulated by the California Government Code, and is 

therefore exempt from rating requirements. 

Interest Rate Risk  

Interest rate risk is the possibility that fluctuations in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of 

an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value 

will be to changes in market interest rates. One method that the Department uses to manage its exposure to 

interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash 

flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio matures or comes close to maturity evenly over time as 

necessary to provide requirements for cash flow and liquidity needed for operations.    
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(3) Cash and Investments, continued 

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the Department’s investments to market interest rate 

fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the Department’s investments by 

maturity date: 
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(3) Cash and Investments, continued 

Credit Risk  

Generally, credit risk is the possibility that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of 

the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating 

organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California Government 

Code, the Department’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year-end for each 

investment type. 
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(3) Cash and Investments, continued 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

Investments in any one issuer (other than for U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds, and external investment 

pools) that represent 5% or more of total Department investments are as follows: 

 

(4) Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the water utility for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015: 

 

 

Reported Percentage of

Issuer Investment Type Amount Investments

Fannie Mae U.S. Agency Securities 2,519,945$          6%

Federal National Mortgage Association U.S. Agency Securities 2,444,812            5%
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(4) Capital Assets, continued 

Capital asset activity for the sewer utility for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015: 
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(5) Operating Leases 

Effective December 15, 2008, the Department took possession of leased space from Superior Homes LLC for 

administrative office and warehouse space for a term of ten years.  The following is a schedule of minimum 

lease payments as of June 30, 2015: 

 

(6) Long-term Liabilities 

Water Utility Fund 

Changes in long-term liabilities in the water utility fund for the year ended June 30, 2015 are as follows: 

 

 

2002 California Infrastructure and Economic Development Bank (CIEDB) Note Payable 

In April 2002, CIEDB issued a $10,000,000 note to the Department to provide funding for transmission mains, 

booster stations and a reservoir identified in the Water System Reliability Schedule of Improvements.  The note 

was issued with an interest rate of 3.34% with interest payable semiannually on February 1 and August 1.  

Principal payments are due annually on February 1. 

Debt service requirements on the 2002 CIEDB Note Payable are as follows: 

 

Water Sewer

Year Utility Utility Total

2016 228,408$       31,152       259,560     

2017 228,408          31,152       259,560     

2018 228,408          31,152       259,560     

685,224$       93,456       778,680     

Year Principal Interest Total

2016 594,440$        153,708            748,148        

2017 614,294          133,854            748,148        

2018 634,812          113,336            748,148        

2019 656,014          92,133              748,147        

2020 677,925          70,222              748,147        

2021-2022 1,424,535      71,760              1,496,295     

4,602,020$    635,013            5,237,033     
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(6) Long-term Liabilities, continued 

2007 CIEDB Note Payable 

In July 2007, CIEDB issued a $10,000,000 note to the Department to provide funding for booster stations and 

transmission mains in the Verdemont area.  The note was issued with an interest rate of 2.71% with interest 

payable semiannually on February 1 and August 1.  Principal payments are due annually on August 1. 

Debt service requirements on the 2007 CIEDB Note Payable are as follows: 

 

2012 CIEDB Note Payable 

In May 2012, CIEDB issued a $10,000,000 note to the Department to provide funding for the construction of the 

12 million gallon Ogden Reservoir and certain pipeline improvements.  The note was issued with an interest rate 

of 2.61% with interest payable semiannually on February 1 and August 1.  Principal payments are due annually 

on August 1. 

Debt service requirements on the 2012 CIEDB Note Payable are as follows: 

 

SBVMWD Note Payable 

In July 2012, the Department closed escrow on the purchase of real property from the San Bernardino Valley 

Municipal Water District (SBVMWD), which included a down payment of $1,000,000 and a promissory note of 

$1,117,500 to be paid in sixty (60) monthly installments due on or before the 1st of each month. 

Debt service requirements on the SBVMWD Note Payable are as follows: 

 

Year Principal Interest Total

2016 492,777$        179,754            672,531        

2017 506,131          166,219            672,350        

2018 519,847          152,317            672,164        

2019 533,935          138,038            671,973        

2020 548,405          123,373            671,778        

2021-2025 2,973,170      382,585            3,355,755     

2026-2027 1,305,126      35,605              1,340,731     

6,879,391$    1,177,891        8,057,282     

Year Principal Interest Total

2016 435,114$        233,468            668,582        

2017 446,470          221,963            668,433        

2018 458,123          210,158            668,281        

2019 470,080          198,045            668,125        

2020 482,349          185,616            667,965        

2021-2025 2,607,286      729,988            3,337,274     

2026-2030 2,965,768      366,828            3,332,596     

2031-2032 1,297,504      34,083              1,331,587     

9,162,694$    2,180,149        11,342,843  

Year Principal Interest Total

2016 225,723$        3,504                229,227        

2017 246,699          1,238                247,937        

472,422$        4,742                477,164        
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(6) Long-term Liabilities, continued 

Debt Service Coverage 

The Water Utility Fund is required to maintain net revenues adequate to cover 110% of annual debt service. 

Gross revenue is defined as Operating Revenue combined with non-operating revenue.  Debt service coverage 

for the Water Utility Fund for the year ended June 30, 2015 was as follows: 

 

Sewer Utility Fund 

Changes in long-term liabilities in the sewer utility fund for the year ended June 30, 2015 are as follows: 

 

State Revolving Fund Note Payable 

The State Water Resources Control Board issued a note to Santa Ana Watershed Authority to provide funding 

for the Santa Ana Watershed Authority providing funding for the San Bernardino/Colton Rapid Infiltration 

Extraction (RIX) project in the amount of $25,978,599.  In April 2001, the agreement was amended to transfer 

the note obligation to the successors in interest being the City of San Bernardino Board of Water Commissioners 

and the City of Colton.  The Department will use revenues from the sewer treatment utility fund towards 

repayment of the note. 

Debt service requirements on the State Revolving Fund Note Payable are as follows: 

 

Year Principal Interest Total

2016 1,709,710$ 47,872          1,757,582      

1,709,710$ 47,872          1,757,582      
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(6) Long-term Liabilities, continued 

 

1998 Certificates of Participation 

In 1998, the sewer treatment utility issued $36,230,000 in Certificates of Participation to advance refund the 

1992 Sewer Certificates of Participation and fund additional capital improvements.  The 1992 Certificates 

originally provided for the construction of certain capital improvements.  The proceeds of the 1998 Certificates 

were invested and used to pay interest on the 1998 issue until February 1, 2001, when the 1992 Certificates 

were called at a prepayment premium of two percent.  The Department now pays the installment payments on 

the 1998 Certificates from the net revenues of the sewer treatment system.  The issue has interest rates 

between 3.95% - 5.25%, annual debt service payments of $1,697,000 - $3,474,000, and a maturity date of 2017. 

Debt service requirements on the 1998 Certificates of Participation are as follows: 

 

Debt Service Coverage 

The Sewer Utility Fund is required to maintain net revenues adequate to cover 110% of annual debt service.  The 

Department’s Certificates of Participation hold a senior lien on net revenues of the Sewer Utility Fund. Gross 

revenue is defined as Operating Revenue combined with non-operating revenue.  Debt service coverage for the 

Sewer Utility Fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 was as follows: 

 

 

  

Year Principal Interest Total

2016 3,155,000$ 318,750       3,473,750      

2017 3,220,000    161,000       3,381,000      

6,375,000$ 479,750       6,854,750      
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(7) Pension Plan 

Plan Description 

The Department is considered to be part of the City of San Bernardino PERS pension plan, therefore all related 

information included in this note refers to the City as a whole unless specifically indicating otherwise.  All 

qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the Department’s Miscellaneous 

Plan, an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the California Public Employees’ 

Retirement System (CalPERS), which acts as a common investment and administrative agent for its participating 

member employers.  Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by State statute and Local Government 

resolution.  CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding 

benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website. 

Additional disclosures regarding the City plan can be found in the City’s audited financial statements. 

Benefits provided 

CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits 
to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries.  Benefits are based on years of credited 
service, equal to one year of full time employment. The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2015, 
are summarized as follows: 
 

 

Employees Covered 

As of June 30, 2013, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms of the Plan: 

    City-wide   Department  

Inactive employees or beneficiaries 

currently receiving benefits 
  

1,262   123 

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet 

receiving benefits 
  

843   0 

Active employees   736   246 

       Total   2,841   43 
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(7) Pension Plan, continued 

Contribution Description 

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL) requires that the employer 

contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be 

effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. The total plan contributions are determined 

through CalPERS’ annual actuarial valuation process. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount 

necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to 

finance any unfunded accrued liability. The employer is required to contribute the difference between the 

actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees. For the measurement period ended June 

30, 2014 (the measurement date), the average active employee contribution rate is 7.936 percent of annual pay, 

and the employer’s contribution rate is 18.186 percent of annual payroll. Employer contribution rates may 

change if plan contracts are amended. It is the responsibility of the employer to make necessary accounting 

adjustments to reflect the impact due to any Employer Paid Member Contributions or situations where 

members are paying a portion of the employer contribution. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions used to determine Total Pension Liability  

For the measurement period ended June 30, 2014 (the measurement date), the total pension liability was 

determined by rolling forward the June 30, 2013 total pension liability. The June 30, 2013 and the June 30, 2014 

total pension liabilities were based on the following actuarial methods and assumptions: 

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal in accordance with the requirements of 

GASB Statement No. 68 

Actuarial Assumptions   

Discount Rate 7.50% 

Inflation 2.75% 

Salary Increases Varies by Entry Age and Service 

Investment Rate of Return 7.50% Net of Pension Plan Investment and Administrative 

Expenses: includes Inflation 

Mortality Rate Table1 Derived using CalPERS’ Membership Data for all funds 

Post Retirement Benefit     Increase Contract COLA up to 2.75% until Purchasing Power applies, 

2.75% thereafter 

1 The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS’ specific data. The table includes 20 years of 

mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB. For more details on this table, please refer to the 

2014 experience study report. 

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2013 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period from 1997 to 2011, including updates to salary increase, mortality and 
retirement rates. The Experience Study report can be obtained at the CalPERS website under Forms and 
Publications. 
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(7) Pension Plan, continued 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50 percent. To determine whether the 

municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for each plan, CalPERS stress tested 

plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the actuarially assumed 

discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested plans run out of assets. Therefore, the current 7.50 

percent discount rate is adequate and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not necessary. The long-

term expected discount rate of 7.50 percent is applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund. The 

stress test results are presented in a detailed report called “GASB Crossover Testing Report” that can be 

obtained at CalPERS’ website under the GASB 68 section. 

According to Paragraph 30 of Statement 68, the long-term discount rate should be determined without 

reduction for pension plan administrative expense. The 7.50 percent investment return assumption used in this 

accounting valuation is net of administrative expenses. Administrative expenses are assumed to be 15 basis 

points. An investment return excluding administrative expenses would have been 7.65 percent. Using this lower 

discount rate has resulted in a slightly higher total pension liability and net pension liability.  CalPERS checked 

the materiality threshold for the difference in calculation and did not find it to be a material difference. 

 

CalPERS is scheduled to review all actuarial assumptions as part of its regular Asset Liability Management (ALM) 

review cycle that is scheduled to be completed in February 2018. Any changes to the discount rate will require 

Board action and proper stakeholder outreach. For these reasons, CalPERS expects to continue using a discount 

rate net of administrative expenses for GASB 67 and 68 calculations through at least the 2017-18 fiscal year. 

CalPERS will continue to check the materiality of the difference in calculation until such time as we have 

changed our methodology. 

 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 

method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension 

plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 

 

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, staff took into account both short-term and long-term 

market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical returns of all the 

funds’ asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the 

long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-

term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was 

set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for 

cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was 

then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter 

of one percent. 
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(7) Pension Plan, continued 

The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was calculated 
using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. These rates of 
return are net of administrative expenses. 

Asset Class 
New Strategic 

Allocation 
Real Return 
Years 1 - 101 

Real Return 
Years 11+2 

Global Equity 47.0% 5.25% 5.71% 

Global Fixed Income 19.0 0.99 2.43 

Inflation Sensitive 6.0 0.45 3.36 

Private Equity 12.0 6.83 6.95 

Real Estate 11.0 4.50 5.13 

Infrastructure and Forestland 3.0 4.50 5.09 

Liquidity 2.0 (0.55) (1.05) 

 

1An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period  
2An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period 
 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

The plan fiduciary net position disclosed in the GASB 68 accounting valuation report may differ from the plan 

assets reported in the funding actuarial valuation report due to several reasons. First, for the accounting 

valuations, CalPERS must keep items such as deficiency reserves, fiduciary self-insurance and OPEB expense 

included as assets. These amounts are excluded for rate setting purposes in the funding actuarial valuation. In 

addition, differences may result from early Comprehensive Annual Financial Report closing and final reconciled 

reserves. 
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(7) Pension Plan, continued 

Changes in Net Pension Liability 

 

The following table shows the Plan’s proportionate share of the net pension liability of the City’s plan 

over the measurement period: 

 

  Increase (Decrease) 

  Total Pension Plan Fiduciary  Net Pension 

  Liability Net Position Liability 

  (a) (b) (c) = (a) - (b) 

Balance at: 6/30/2013 (VD) 170,090,256 123,406,572 51,683,684 

Balance at: 6/30/2014 (MD) 182,054,201 141,121,803 40,932,398 

Net Changes during 2013-14 6,963,945 17,715,231 (10,751,285) 

        

 

 

 

 
Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

 
The following presents the net pension liability of the Plan as of the Measurement Date, calculated using 
the discount rate of 7.50 percent, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point lower (6.50 percent) or 1 percentage-point higher (8.50 
percent) than the current rate: 

 
 Discount Rate – 1% 

(6.50%) 
Current Discount Rate 

(7.50%) 
Discount Rate + 1% 

(8.50%) 

Plan’s Net Pension Liability – 
Department Allocation (36%) $    64,214,204 $    40,932,398 $ 21,619,155 

 
 

 

Subsequent Events 

There were no subsequent events that would materially affect the results presented in this disclosure. 

 

 

Recognition of Gains and Losses 

Under GASB 68, gains and losses related to changes in total pension liability and fiduciary net position are 

recognized in pension expense systematically over time. 
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(7) Pension Plan, continued 

The first amortized amounts are recognized in pension expense for the year the gain or loss occurs. The 

remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 

and are to be recognized in future pension expense. 

The amortization period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss: 
 

Difference between projected and 
actual earnings 

5 year straight-line amortization 

  
All other amounts Straight-line amortization over the average 

expected remaining service lives of all 
members that are provided with benefits 
(active, inactive, and retired) as of the 
beginning of the measurement period. 

 

The expected average remaining service lifetime (EARSL) is calculated by dividing the total future service years 

by the total number of plan participants (active, inactive, and retired). 

The EARSL for the Plan for the 2013-14 measurement period is 2.4 years, which was obtained by dividing the 

total service years of 6,678 (the sum of remaining service lifetimes of the active employees) by 2,841 (the total 

number of participants: active, inactive, and retired). Note that inactive employees and retirees have remaining 

service lifetimes equal to 0. Also note that total future service is based on the members’ probability of 

decrementing due to an event other than receiving a cash refund. 

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions  

 

For the measurement period ending June 30, 2014 (the measurement date), the Department recognized a 

pension expense of $2,666,737 for the Plan.  

 

As of June 30, 2014, the Department reports other amounts for the Plan as deferred outflow and deferred 

inflow of resources related to pensions as follows: 

 

 Deferred Outflows of 

Resources 

Deferred Inflows of 

Resources 

Pension contributions subsequent to 

measurement date $2,979,160 $0 

Differences between Expected and Actual 

Experience 0 0 

Changes of Assumptions 0 0 

Net Difference between Projected and Actual 

Earnings on Pension Plan Investments 0 (9,651,219) 

     Total $2,979,160 $(9,651,219) 

 

The amounts above are net inflows and outflows recognized in the 2013-14 measurement period expense. 

 

$2,979,160 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to employer contributions subsequent to the 

measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 

2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 

to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows: 
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(7) Pension Plan, continued 

 

 

Measurement period 

Ended June 30: 

Deferred 

Outflows/(Inflows) 

of Resources 

2015 $(2,412,805) 

2016 (2,412,805) 

2017 (2,412,805) 

2018 (2,412,805) 

2019 0 

Thereafter 0 

 

 

(8) Other Post-Employment Benefits 

Plan Description 

The Department provides health benefits to all qualifying retirees and their spouses in accordance with 

Memorandums of Understanding under various labor agreements.   

Eligibility 

Employees are eligible for retiree health benefits if they retire from the Department on or after age 50 with at 

least 10, 12 or 15 years of service, depending on bargaining unit, and are eligible for a PERS pension.  The latest 

actuarial valuation of the plan occurred June 30, 2014. Membership consists of the following: 

 

 

Funding Policy 

The contribution requirements of plan members and the Department are established and may be amended by 

the Board.  The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements, with an 

additional amount to prefund benefits as may be determined annually by the Board.  The Department has 

established an irrevocable trust to which pre-funding contributions are made.  For fiscal year 2015, the 

Department has funded $2,256,321 for the current year.  The Department pays up to the entire cost of health 

benefits for eligible retirees and their spouses, subject to the City's vesting schedule. 

  

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 123

Active plan members 246

Total plan members 369
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 (8) Other Post-Employment Benefits, continued 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation 

The Department’s annual other post-employment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the 

annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the 

parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is 

projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over 

a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the Department’s annual 

OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the Department’s net OPEB 

obligation: 

 

The Department's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net 

OPEB obligation for 2014 and the two preceding years were as follows: 

 

Funded Status and Funding Progress 

As of June 30, 2014, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 38.2% funded. The actuarial accrued 

liability for benefits was $35,012,000, the actuarial value of assets was $13,380,000 and the unfunded actuarial 

accrued liability (UAAL) was $21,632,000.  The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by 

the plan) was $15,531,000 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 139.3%. 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions 

about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future 

employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the 

plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are 

compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding 

progress presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or 

decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 

 

 

 

Actual required contribution (ARC) 2,707,000$     

Interest on new OPEB obligation 22,032              

Amortization of net OPEB obligation (30,000)            

Annual OPEB cost (expense) 2,699,032        

Contributions made 2,256,321        

Increase in net OPEB obligation 442,711           

Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 352,510           

Net OPEB obligation - end of year 795,221$         

Percentage of

Year Annual Paid Annual OPEB OPEB

Ended OPEB Cost Contribution Cost Contibuted Obligation

6/30/2013 2,361,000$      573,621$         24% 1,787,379$      

6/30/2014 2,438,000        3,872,869        159% 352,510            

6/30/2015 2,699,032        2,256,321        84% 795,221            
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(8) Other Post-Employment Benefits, continued 

 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as 

understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of 

each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to 

that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the 

effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the 

long-term perspective of the calculations. 

In the June 30, 2014, actuarial valuation, the entry age actuarial cost method was used. The actuarial 

assumptions included a rate of return of 6.25% and annual healthcare cost trend rates of 7.5% initially, reduced 

by increments to an ultimate rate of 5% in 2021. Both rates included a 3% inflation assumption. The actuarial 

value of assets was determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in the market 

value of investments over a five-year period. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of projected 

payroll on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2015, was 19 years. 

Schedule of Funding Progress 

 

 

(9) Related Party Transactions 

The following is a summary of transactions and balances with the City of San Bernardino and its various 

Departments as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015. 

 

 

 

 

Actuarial UAAL as a

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded % of Covered

Valuation Value of Liability AAL Funded Ratio Covered Payroll

Date Assets (a) (AAL) (b) (UAAL) (b-a) (a/b) Payroll (c) (b-a)/c

6/30/2010 -$                 28,676,000$  28,676,000$  0.0% 12,619,000$  227.2%

6/30/2012 8,556,000       28,831,000    20,275,000    29.7% 14,765,000    137.3%

6/30/2014 13,380,000    35,012,000    21,632,000    38.2% 15,531,000    139.3%
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(9) Related Party Transactions, continued 
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(10) Joint Ventures 

Colton / San Bernardino Regional Tertiary Treatment and Water Reclamation Authority 

On August 2, 1994, the City of San Bernardino, through the Department formed a joint powers authority with 

the City of Colton to construct, operate, use and maintain tertiary wastewater treatment, disposal and water 

reclamations systems, including the Regional Rapid Infiltration and Extraction Facility (RIX).  This authority is 

governed by a separate board consisting of four members; two appointed by the City of San Bernardino through 

the Department’s BOWC and two appointed by the City Council of the City of Colton.  Construction of RIX was 

administered by the Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority and was substantially completed during 1996.  

Administration and operation was turned over at that time.  The cities of San Bernardino and Colton each have a 

measurable equity interest in the net position of RIX in proportion to its contributions, which are based on an 

80% / 20% split, respectively.  Substantially all of the assets of RIX are in the form of capital assets. RIX has no 

liabilities. Annual revenues (in the form of contributions from the two member cities) are equal to annual 

expenses. The Department's equity interest in this joint venture has been reported as an investment in joint 

venture in the accompanying statement of net position. 

San Bernardino Public Safety Authority 

On April 1, 1968, the City of San Bernardino and the County of San Bernardino formed the San Bernardino Public 

Safety Authority (PSA), a joint powers authority, as a financing vehicle to construct public safety buildings and 

improvements to the wastewater treatment plant.  In accordance with the terms of an installment purchase 

agreement, title to the capital assets financed through the PSA were recognized as capital assets of the City at 

the inception of the installment purchase agreement between the City and the PSA. The City's remaining 

interest in the joint venture is in the form of cash and investments held by the PSA for debt service related 

activity. The Department's equity interest in these assets has been recognized in the accompanying statement of 

net position as an investment in joint venture. 

West End Water Development, Treatment and Conservation Joint Powers Authority 

On August 15, 1990, the City of San Bernardino joined the West End Water Development, Treatment and 

Conservation Joint Powers Authority (WEJPA) as a financing vehicle for construction of water facilities.  A three-

member board consisting of one representative from each agency’s governing body governs the WEJPA.  This 

joint venture was formed to provide a financing vehicle for the three member agencies. This joint venture is 

currently inactive. 

(11) Commitments and Contingencies 

Risk Management 

Risk management activities are recorded in both utility funds.  Significant losses are covered by insurance for all 

major events except workers’ compensation, for which the Department retains risk of loss in conjunction with 

the City of San Bernardino’s risk management program for workers compensation.  Settlement amounts have 

not exceeded insurance coverage for the current year or the prior three years.  Insurance coverage has been 

increased over the past several years. 

The Department records an estimated liability for workers’ compensation.  Claims liabilities are based on 

estimates of the ultimate cost of reported claims and an estimate for claims incurred but not reported based 

upon historical experience.  Workers’ compensation claims liability is not discounted. 

  



CITY OF SAN BERNARDINO MUNICIPAL WATER DEPARTMENT 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 

47 
 

(11) Commitments and Contingencies, continued 

The following are the changes in approximate aggregate liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2015. 

 

Litigation 

In the ordinary course of operations, the Department is subject to claims and litigation from outside parties. 

After consultation with legal counsel, the Department believes the ultimate outcome of such matters, if any, will 

not materially affect its financial condition. 

(12) Federal and State Grants 

Grant funds received by the Department are subject to audit by the grantor agencies.  Such audit could lead to 

requests for reimbursements to the grantor agencies for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant.  

Management of the Department believes that such disallowances, if any, would not be significant.  The 

Department produces a Single Audit that details the use of grant and Consent Decree funds (see note 13 for 

information on the Consent Decree). 

 

(12) Subsequent Events 

On December 1st, 2015, the Board of Water Commissioners approved a loan with the San Bernardino Valley 

Municipal Water District up to $1.2 million for the UV System Rehabilitation Project. 
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(13)  Consent Decree 

In 1996, the City of San Bernardino filed a complaint against the United States of America, Department of the 

Army to recover damages, response costs and other available remedies relating to contamination alleged to 

have originated at a World War II army installation known as Camp Ono.  In March 2005, the United States 

District Court, Central Division entered judgment, in the form of a consent decree, in the matter of City of San 

Bernardino v. United States of America.  The Consent Decree settles the City’s and the State’s claims arising from 

the groundwater contamination allegedly caused by the Army.  The Consent Decree contains a number of 

provisions obligating the City (through the Department) to operate and maintain the Newmark Groundwater 

Superfund site (Site).  The Site consists of two operable units, the Newmark Operable Unit and the Muscoy 

Operable Unit.  The Newmark Operable Unit was declared operational and functional in 1998.  The Muscoy 

Operable unit was declared operational and functional in 2007. 

The Consent Decree provided for a payment of $69 million from the Army to the City for performance of the 

work outlined in the Consent Decree.  Upon acceptance of the Consent Decree, the Department received title to 

all facilities constructed by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) of the Site and agreed to 

operate and maintain the groundwater extraction and treatment system for a period of 50 years.  The $69 

million payment consisted of $59 million for operations and maintenance and $10 million for the construction of 

certain capital facilities that would be required in the future; the funds are subject to strict limitations, contained 

in the Consent Decree, as to how the money may be spent. 

Pursuant to the Consent Decree, $10 million, including interest earned, has been set aside to be used only for (i) 

funding construction of treatment and directly related transmission systems that expand the Department’s 

capacity to deliver potable water and (ii) funding work performed by the Department to complete construction 

of the Muscoy Operable Unit extraction system.  These capital facility funds may not be used for costs incurred 

to operate, maintain, repair or retrofit components of the site extraction of treatment systems constructed by 

EPA. 

In March 2006, the Department entered into a Guaranteed Investment Contract with AIG Match Funding 

Corporation.  The Department invested $16,482,039 of excess Consent Decree funds into an interest bearing 

Escrow Fund investment with an interest rate of 4.95% per annum.  These funds were invested to pay costs 

associated with the water facilities defined in the Consent Decree for years 2035-2056.  An additional $50 

million was used to purchase a blended insurance policy to provide a financial vehicle that provides cost gap 

coverage for the first 30 years of expenses. 

The terms of the Guaranteed Investment Contract only provided the Department with the position of a secured 

creditor with respect to an AIG bankruptcy.  As concerns arose regarding AIG’s financial credibility, in October 

2009, the Department negotiated and accepted a “payout” in the amount of $18,661,876 which represented the 

principal and accrued interest as of that date. These funds are currently invested in a diversified portfolio 

managed by PFM Asset Management and present in more detail in note 3. 
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(14) Net Position 

Net position at June 30, 2015, consisted of the following: 

 

 

(15) Prior Period Adjustment 

During the year the Department implemented GASB 68 resulting in recording a net pension liability and deferred 

outflow of resources as a prior period adjustment. 
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FINANCIAL TRENDS

These schedules contain trend informaton to help the

reader understand how the Department's financial performance

and well-being have changed over time.
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City of San Bernardino Municipal Water Department

Changes in Net Position

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 

Ended

Total 

Operating 

Revenue

Total 

Operating 

Expense

Operating 

Income

Total Non-

Operating 

Income 

(Expense)

Total 

Contributed 

Capital

Changes in Net 

Position

6/30/2006 41,163,361     44,391,520     (3,228,159)      1,112,920       18,430,146     16,314,907     

6/30/2007 47,914,999     48,791,026     (876,027)         2,106,963       14,904,830     16,135,766     

6/30/2008 46,757,411     54,172,974     (7,415,563)      3,838,588       13,263,336     9,686,361       

6/30/2009 47,171,798     54,044,608     (6,872,810)      2,717,707       5,197,854       1,042,751       

6/30/2010 47,808,997     57,965,395     (10,156,398)   1,375,536       7,510,777       (1,270,085)      

6/30/2011 54,280,835     56,328,523     (2,047,688)      1,408,498       4,390,162       3,750,972       

6/30/2012 60,756,697     58,971,535     1,785,162       1,974,266       3,055,921       6,815,349       

6/30/2013 61,883,615     57,327,537     4,556,078       1,861,758       4,896,921       11,314,757     

6/30/2014 62,292,428     57,965,395     4,327,033       1,375,536       7,510,777       13,213,346     

6/30/2015 57,805,304     55,074,661     2,730,643       3,801,830       4,977,945       11,510,418     

Source:  Department's annual reports
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City of San Bernardino Municipal Water Department

Water Fund

Changes in Net Position

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 

Ended

Total 

Operating 

Revenue

Total 

Operating 

Expense

Operating 

Income

Total Non-

Operating 

Income 

(Expense)

Total 

Contributed 

Capital

Changes in Net 

Position

6/30/2006 21,760,104     24,833,550     (3,073,446)      3,186,965       13,766,100     13,879,619     

6/30/2007 28,232,366     28,069,392     162,974           3,487,628       11,931,117     15,581,719     

6/30/2008 27,337,093     32,453,101     (5,116,008)      3,479,605       11,397,947     9,761,544       

6/30/2009 27,258,954     32,934,974     (5,676,020)      2,853,518       3,919,197       1,096,695       

6/30/2010 27,688,694     31,953,080     (4,264,386)      2,101,540       5,829,803       3,666,957       

6/30/2011 33,027,707     35,811,915     (2,784,208)      2,025,029       2,782,168       2,022,989       

6/30/2012 37,106,217     39,155,830     (2,049,613)      2,436,449       2,384,710       2,771,546       

6/30/2013 37,868,846     37,430,224     438,622           2,492,448       3,421,521       6,352,591       

6/30/2014 36,671,903     36,041,616     630,287           2,504,705       6,521,601       9,656,593       

6/30/2015 33,121,128     35,504,582     (2,383,454)      2,702,953       3,905,104       4,224,603       

Source:  Department's annual reports
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City of San Bernardino Municipal Water Department

Sewer Fund

Changes in Net Position

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 

Ended

Total 

Operating 

Revenue

Total 

Operating 

Expense

Operating 

Income

Total Non-

Operating 

Income 

(Expense)

Total 

Contributed 

Capital

Changes in Net 

Position

6/30/2006 20,363,472     20,518,185     (154,713)         (2,074,045)      4,664,046       2,435,288       

6/30/2007 21,002,484     22,041,485     (1,039,001)      (1,380,665)      2,973,713       554,047          

6/30/2008 20,847,984     23,147,539     (2,299,555)      358,983          1,865,389       (75,183)           

6/30/2009 21,208,021     22,404,811     (1,196,790)      (135,811)         1,278,657       (53,944)           

6/30/2010 22,424,943     24,474,747     (2,049,804)      (19,598)           495,768          (1,573,634)      

6/30/2011 23,433,833     22,697,313     736,520          (616,531)         1,607,994       1,727,983       

6/30/2012 25,888,729     22,053,954     3,834,775       (462,183)         671,211          4,043,803       

6/30/2013 26,414,653     22,297,197     4,117,456       (630,690)         1,475,400       4,962,166       

6/30/2014 25,670,774     21,974,028     3,696,746       (1,129,169)      989,176          3,556,753       

6/30/2015 24,734,425     19,620,328     5,114,097       1,098,877       1,072,841       7,285,815       

Source:  Department's annual reports
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City of San Bernardino Municipal Water Department

Net Position  By Component

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 

Ended

Net Investment 

in Capital Assets

Restricted 

Net Position

Unrestricted 

Net Position

Total  Net 

Position

6/30/2006 175,115,812      24,859,169   25,256,531   225,231,512  

6/30/2007 188,196,495      27,280,333   22,890,450   238,367,278  

6/30/2008 196,892,664      24,205,033   26,955,942   248,053,639  

6/30/2009 199,628,149      19,831,726   29,636,515   249,096,390  

6/30/2010 204,066,502      11,992,059   35,131,152   251,189,713  

6/30/2011 206,520,977      8,276,462     40,143,246   254,940,685  

6/30/2012 212,490,593      7,389,246     43,545,621   263,425,460  

6/30/2013 200,072,942      7,799,773     69,315,171   277,187,886  

6/30/2014 206,663,567      7,515,658     66,524,589   280,703,814  

6/30/2015 223,053,269      7,633,049     12,510,969   243,197,287  

Source:  Department's annual reports
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City of San Bernardino Municipal Water Department

Net Position  By Component-Water Fund

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 

Ended

Net Investment 

in Capital Assets

Restricted 

Net Position

Unrestricted 

Net Position

Total  Net 

Position

6/30/2006 106,036,062      8,720,267     7,964,724      122,721,053  

6/30/2007 122,080,723      11,294,440   4,927,609      138,302,772  

6/30/2008 130,610,364      8,406,696     9,047,256      148,064,316  

6/30/2009 133,834,066      6,328,449     8,998,496      149,161,011  

6/30/2010 139,688,690      1,528,434     11,610,844    152,827,968  

6/30/2011 140,912,873      -                 13,938,084    154,850,957  

6/30/2012 148,063,104      41,320           13,658,195    161,762,619  

6/30/2013 156,758,127      -                 12,133,904    168,892,031  

6/30/2014 163,797,283      -                 11,728,071    175,525,354  

6/30/2015 166,963,238      (15,152,937)   151,810,301  

Source:  Department's annual reports
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City of San Bernardino Municipal Water Department

Net Position  By Component-Sewer Fund

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 

Ended

Net Investment 

in Capital Assets

Restricted 

Net Position

Unrestricted 

Net Position

Total  Net 

Position

6/30/2006 66,079,750        16,138,902   17,291,807   99,510,459     

6/30/2007 66,115,772        15,985,893   17,962,841   100,064,506  

6/30/2008 66,282,300        15,798,337   17,908,686   99,989,323     

6/30/2009 65,794,083        13,503,277   20,638,019   99,935,379     

6/30/2010 64,377,812        10,463,625   23,520,308   98,361,745     

6/30/2011 65,608,104        8,276,462     26,205,162   100,089,728  

6/30/2012 64,427,489        7,347,926     29,887,426   101,662,841  

6/30/2013 43,314,815        7,799,733     57,181,267   108,295,815  

6/30/2014 42,866,284        7,515,658     54,796,518   105,178,460  

6/30/2015 56,090,031        7,633,049     27,663,906   91,386,986     

Source:  Department's annual reports
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City of San Bernardino Municipal Water Department

Water Fund Revenue by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 

Ended Water Sales

Service 

Charges/Fees

Other 

Services

Total Operating 

Revenue

Interest 

Income

Rental 

Income

Other 

Income

Gain on 

asset 

disposition

 Noncapital 

grant funds 

Total Non 

Operating 

Income

6/30/2006 19,293,502       2,243,214       223,388    21,760,104       401,369    89,761    421,317    693,500    1,983,509       3,589,456 

6/30/2007 25,136,912       2,929,446       166,008    28,232,366       1,180,789 82,944    227,509    37,377       2,300,151       3,828,770 

6/30/2008 24,194,275       3,005,938       136,880    27,337,093       1,613,192 95,818    178,348    -             2,715,957       4,603,315 

6/30/2009 24,147,627       2,991,468       119,859    27,258,954       1,008,607 101,130  -              309,708    2,043,889       3,463,334 

6/30/2010 24,436,854       3,118,571       133,269    27,688,694       578,912    98,638    175,782    8,988         1,894,624       2,756,944 

6/30/2011 29,782,786       3,101,431       143,489    33,027,707       451,927    117,454  59,960       -             1,928,999       2,558,340 

6/30/2012 33,315,084       3,665,354       125,779    37,106,217       219,027    133,400  1,041,667 -             1,838,223       3,232,317 

6/30/2013 34,252,357       3,476,061       140,429    37,868,846       -              122,826  211,032    -             3,110,201       3,444,059 

6/30/2014 34,777,112       1,754,614       140,176    36,671,903       93,428       160,089  478,512    4,446         2,030,066       2,766,541 

6/30/2015 31,217,534       1,789,654       113,940    33,121,128       54,786       181,809  545,840    -             2,089,637       2,872,072 

Source:  Department's annual reports
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City of San Bernardino Municipal Water Department

Sewer Fund Revenue by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 

Ended

Sewer 

Treatment 

Revenue

Industrial 

Waste

Other 

Operating 

Revenue

Total Operating 

Revenue

Interest 

Income

Rental 

Income

Other 

Income

Gain on 

Asset 

Disposition 

/Joint 

Venture

Total Non 

Operating 

Income

6/30/2006 19,492,372       366,321           504,779      20,363,472       662,460      29,181    -              -                 691,641      

6/30/2007 20,083,001       390,328           529,155      21,002,484       1,906,369  29,101    -              -                 1,935,470  

6/30/2008 20,009,959       372,631           465,394      20,847,984       2,319,570  29,425    -              -                 2,348,995  

6/30/2009 20,124,192       406,686           677,142      21,208,021       1,652,562  26,826    -              -                 1,679,388  

6/30/2010 20,771,749       431,300           1,221,894  22,424,942       1,603,840  26,303    -              -                 1,630,143  

6/30/2011 21,833,085       379,316           1,221,431  23,433,833       817,740      23,517    -              41,609          882,866      

6/30/2012 24,250,417       376,550           1,261,762  25,888,729       812,885      21,907    -              -                 834,792      

6/30/2013 25,261,792       296,153           856,708      26,414,654       340,689      22,574    -              -                 363,263      

6/30/2014 25,350,988       319,786           -               25,670,774       443,836      20,669    202,078    -                 666,583      

6/30/2015 24,399,415       335,010           -               24,734,425       481,211      700          498,247    345,884        1,326,042  

Source:  Department's annual reports
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City of San Bernardino Municipal Water Department

Water Fund Expenses by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 

Ended

Administration 

& Customer 

Service

Plant 

Operations 

and 

Distribution Engineering Maintenance

Depreciation 

and 

Amortization

Total 

Operating 

Expense

Interest 

Expense

Loss on 

asset 

disposition

 Other Non-

operating 

expense 

Total Non-

Operating 

Expense

6/30/2006 8,477,420         9,251,147       1,873,653   1,748,898         3,482,432     24,833,550 365,636    -             36,855            402,491      

6/30/2007 9,142,746         10,532,739     2,334,538   1,994,341         4,065,028     28,069,392 313,450    -             27,692            341,142      

6/30/2008 12,493,276       11,250,830     2,405,221   1,813,310         4,490,464     32,453,101 592,182    531,528    -                   1,123,710   

6/30/2009 11,901,700       10,908,332     3,046,765   1,853,244         5,224,933     32,934,974 601,795    -             8,021               609,816      

6/30/2010 11,552,062       11,209,298     2,204,374   1,577,642         5,409,704     31,953,080 175,782    8,988         1,894,624       2,079,394   

6/30/2011 15,489,152       10,440,753     2,220,956   1,634,919         5,396,135     35,181,915 531,839    1,472         -                   533,311      

6/30/2012 16,304,830       12,959,507     2,492,056   1,628,764         5,770,673     39,155,830 526,915    268,953    -                   795,868      

6/30/2013 16,149,788       11,073,338     2,813,459   1,888,236         5,505,403     37,430,224 689,665    261,946    -                   951,611      

6/30/2014 14,410,400       11,395,305     2,426,717   1,837,556         5,971,638     36,041,616 261,836    -             -                   261,836      

6/30/2015 13,244,552       12,467,017     2,439,170   1,988,719         5,365,124     35,504,582 169,119    -             -                   169,119      

Source:  Department's annual reports
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City of San Bernardino Municipal Water Department

Sewer Fund Expenses by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 

Ended

Administration 

& Customer 

Service

Plant 

Operations Engineering Maintenance

Depreciation 

and 

Amortization

Total Operating 

Expense

Interest 

Expense

Loss on 

asset 

disposition

 Other Non-

operating 

expense 

Total Non-

Operating 

Expense

6/30/2006 2,937,280         9,489,306       -              2,759,868         5,331,731    20,518,185         2,164,150  474,657    126,879          2,765,686   

6/30/2007 3,180,710         10,388,472    45,794        3,088,137         5,338,372    22,041,485         2,021,326  2,037        1,292,772      3,316,135   

6/30/2008 4,318,939         10,293,707    32,336        3,138,509         5,364,048    23,147,539         1,868,033  3,784        118,195          1,990,012   

6/30/2009 3,334,540         10,237,490    16,278        2,928,189         5,888,314    22,404,811         1,701,371  3,736        110,092          1,815,199   

6/30/2010 5,807,692         10,170,647    -              3,059,780         5,436,628    24,474,747         1,529,650  2,142        117,949          1,649,741   

6/30/2011 3,989,616         10,627,225    -              3,108,701         4,971,771    22,697,313         1,343,649  -            155,748          1,499,397   

6/30/2012 3,823,627         10,328,073    -              3,257,127         4,645,127    22,053,954         1,147,810  34,114      118,051          1,299,975   

6/30/2013 4,454,713         10,040,895    -              3,392,868         4,408,721    22,297,197         828,129     11,644      154,180          993,953      

6/30/2014 5,345,726         9,528,218       527,294     3,146,275         3,426,515    21,974,028         557,049     16,244      1,238,703      1,811,996   

6/30/2015 4,016,198         9,292,501       534,226     2,906,853         2,870,550    19,620,328         227,165     -            -                  227,165      

Source:  Department's annual reports
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DEBT CAPACITY INFORMATION 

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess

the affordability of the Department's current level of 

outstanding debt and ability to issue debt in the future.
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City of San Bernardino Municipal Water Department

Water Fund Debt Service Coverage

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 

Ended

Total 

Operating 

Revenue

 Net 

Operating 

Expenses 

(Excluding) 

Depreciation

Net 

Operating 

Income (Loss)

Net Non-

Operating 

Income/  

(Expense)

Amount 

Available for 

Debt Service Principal Interest

Total Debt 

Service

Coverage 

Ratio

6/30/2006    21,760,104    21,351,118          408,986  3,186,965       3,595,951       1,765,988          396,183 2,162,171  1.66         

6/30/2007    28,232,366    24,004,364       4,228,002  3,487,628       7,715,630          523,644          582,772 1,106,416  6.97         

6/30/2008    27,337,093    27,962,637        (625,544)  3,479,605       2,854,061          541,079          485,626 1,026,705  2.78         

6/30/2009    27,258,954    27,710,041        (451,087)  2,853,518       2,402,431          559,106          603,368 1,162,474  2.07         

6/30/2010    27,688,694    26,543,376       1,145,318  2,101,540       3,246,858          956,106          667,146 1,623,252  2.00         

6/30/2011    33,027,707    29,785,780       3,241,927  2,025,029       5,266,956       1,352,148          548,318 1,900,466  2.77         

6/30/2012    37,106,217    33,385,157       3,721,060  2,436,449       6,157,509          974,027          505,819 1,479,846  4.16         

6/30/2013    37,868,846    31,924,821       5,944,025  2,492,448       8,436,473       1,227,491          547,616 1,775,107  4.75         

6/30/2014    36,671,903    30,069,978       6,601,925  2,504,705       9,106,630       1,658,265          660,854 2,319,119  3.93         

6/30/2015    33,121,128    30,139,458       2,981,670  2,702,953       5,684,623       1,683,818          187,153 1,870,971  3.04         

Source:  Department's annual reports
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City of San Bernardino Municipal Water Department

Sewer Fund Debt Service Coverage

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 

Ended

Total 

Operating 

Revenue

 Net 

Operating 

Expenses 

(Excluding) 

Depreciation

Net 

Operating 

Income (Loss)

Net Non-

Operating 

Income/  

(Expense)

Amount 

Available for 

Debt Service Principal Interest

Total Debt 

Service

Coverage 

Ratio

6/30/2006    20,363,472    15,186,454      5,177,018   (2,074,045)      3,102,973      3,603,614      2,143,829 5,747,443  0.54        

6/30/2007    21,002,484    16,703,113      4,299,371   (1,380,665)      2,918,706      3,761,442      2,003,864 5,765,306  0.51        

6/30/2008    20,847,984    17,783,491      3,064,493        358,983      3,423,476      3,823,275      1,855,515 5,678,790  0.60        

6/30/2009    21,208,021    16,516,497      4,691,524      (135,811)      4,555,713      4,197,317      1,687,518 5,884,835  0.77        

6/30/2010    22,424,942    19,038,119      3,386,823         (19,598)      3,367,225      4,181,342      1,635,707 5,817,049  0.58        

6/30/2011    23,433,833    17,725,542      5,708,291      (616,531)      5,091,760      2,130,378      3,706,195 5,836,573  0.87        

6/30/2012    25,888,729    17,408,827      8,479,902      (462,183)      8,017,719      4,417,731      1,166,496 5,584,227  1.44        

6/30/2013    26,414,654    17,888,476      8,526,178      (630,690)      7,895,488      4,724,227         757,010 5,481,237  1.44        

6/30/2014    25,670,774    18,547,513      7,123,261   (1,129,169)      5,994,092      4,424,090         747,460 5,171,550  1.16        

6/30/2015    24,734,425    16,749,778      7,984,647     1,098,877      9,083,524      4,629,425         568,888 5,198,313  1.75        

Source:  Department's annual reports
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DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators

to help the reader understand the environment within which 

the Department's financial activities take place.
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City of San Bernardino Municipal Water Department

Demographic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 

Ended

Estimated 

Population 

(1)

Personal 

Income (In 

Thousands) 

Per Capita 

Personal 

Income (2)

Unemployment 

Rate (3)

6/30/2006 201,396        5,982,065                29,703 4.90%

6/30/2007 204,620        6,248,072                30,535 5.80%

6/30/2008 205,493        6,318,704                30,749 8.30%

6/30/2009 208,318        6,198,919                29,757 12.90%

6/30/2010 209,924        6,256,785                29,805 13.70%

6/30/2011 210,108        6,559,152                31,218 13.00%

6/30/2012 210,753        6,807,533                32,301 11.50%

6/30/2013 211,994        7,001,102                33,025 9.80%

6/30/2014 212,584        7,070,119                33,258 8.20%

6/30/2015 213,933        n/a n/a 7.30%

(1)   California Department of Finance

(2)  U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analys for 2006-2013 (Riverside-San Bernardino MSA)

(3)  State of California, Economic Development Department

* Most recent complete year available.
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City of San Bernardino Municipal Water Department

Major Employers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Fiscal Year 2015 Fiscal Year 2006*

Employer Ranking Number of Employees Ranking Number of Employees

Stater Brothers 1 18,000                              

County of San Bernardino 2 17,395                              9 1000+

San Bernardino City Unified School District 3 12,629                              7 1000+

California State University, San Bernardino 4 3,012                                 1 1000+

Saint Bernardine Medical Center 5 1,400                                 

Community Hospital of San Bernardino 6 1,200                                 4 1000+

City of San Bernardino 7 1,067                                 3 1000+

San Bernardino Community College District 8 862                                    8 1000+

The Sun Newspaper 9 526                                    

Blood Bank of San Bernardino 10 340                                    

State of California, Department of Transportation 2 1000+

Corona Regional Medical Center 5 1000+

Renzenberger, Inc. 6 1000+

San Bernardino Valley College 10 1000+

* Actual employment figures not available

Source:  City of San Bernardino Economic Development Department and City's Annual Financial Report
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City of San Bernardino Municipal Water Department

Authorized Positions History

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Year End Water Fund Sewer Fund Total 

2006 178.0 75.0 253.0

2007 185.0 78.0 263.0

2008 194.0 79.0 273.0

2009 183.0 78.0 261.0

2010 167.0 84.0 251.0

2011 163.5 78.0 241.5

2012 173.5 82.0 255.5

2013 173.5 82.0 255.5

2014 185.5 72.5 258.0

2015 183.5 74.5 258.0

Source:  Department's records
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REVENUE CAPACITY

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess

the Department's significant revenue sources.
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City of San Bernardino Municipal Water Department

Water Rates: Minimum Monthly Charge

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Effective

Date 1/2" 5/8" 3/4" 1" 1-1/2" 2" 3" 4" 6" 8" 10" 12"

7/1/2006 * 8.32 11.10 13.27 23.81 33.26 56.56 96.02 172.87 259.28 324.10 388.98

7/1/2007 * 8.59 11.47 13.71 24.6 34.36 58.43 99.19 178.57 267.84 334.8 401.82

7/1/2008 * 8.88 11.84 14.16 25.41 35.49 60.35 102.46 184.47 276.67 345.84 415.08

7/1/2009 * 8.88 11.84 14.16 25.41 35.49 60.35 102.46 184.47 276.67 345.84 415.08

2/1/2010 10.55 10.55 13.00 17.90 30.15 44.85 79.15 128.15 250.70 397.75 569.30 *

1/1/2011 12.20 12.20 15.15 21.00 35.75 53.45 94.75 153.70 301.15 478.10 684.55 *

1/1/2012 12.90 12.90 16.15 22.60 38.80 58.20 103.50 168.20 330.00 524.15 750.65 *

7/1/2013 12.90 12.90 16.15 22.60 38.80 58.20 103.50 168.20 330.00 524.15 750.65 *

7/1/2014 12.90 12.90 16.15 22.60 38.80 58.20 103.50 168.20 330.00 524.15 750.65 *

7/1/2015 12.90 12.90 16.15 22.60 38.80 58.20 103.50 168.20 330.00 524.15 750.65 *

Source:  Department's Records

All water usage, except municipal, will be billed at the rate of $0.94 and $0.97 per 100 cubic feet effective July 1, 2007 and July 1, 2008, 

respectively, with no minimum allowance.

($/month)

* Information not reported
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City of San Bernardino Municipal Water Department

Water Connections and Revenues by User Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years

User Type Connections Revenue Connections Revenue Connections Revenue Connections Revenue

Single family 35,695           16,775,834$  35,012 18,583,708$  34,913 18,741,773$  34,716 18,094,052$  

Multiple family 2,869             4,349,601 2,824 4,591,290 2,820 4,704,384 2,801 4,510,962

Commercial 3,097             6,332,882 3,085 6,566,344 3,082 6,800,310 3,117 5,790,427

Landscape 1,130             3,079,610 1,140 3,616,135 1,104 3,591,678 1,151 3,321,846

Other 1,791             679,606 1,703 913,810 1,663 599,210 1,626 1,597,791

Total all users 44,582 31,217,533$  43,764 34,271,287$  43,582 34,437,355$  43,411 33,315,078$  

Connections Revenue Connections Revenue Connections Revenue Connections Revenue

Single family 34,695 15,665,580$  34,542 13,899,599$  34,418 13,943,441$  34,316 13,419,093$  

Multiple family 2,806 4,025,079 2,799 3,442,271 2,801 3,547,811 2,834 3,419,696

Commercial 3,117 4,678,003 3,127 3,826,613 3,126 3,867,923 4,003 5,765,993

Landscape 1,149 2,745,990 1,158 2,367,514 1,173 2,454,044 -                 -                  

Other 1,571 701,296 1,553 900,840 1,545 1,094,364 1,820 1,518,693

Total all users 43,338 27,815,948$  43,179 24,436,837$  43,063 24,907,583$  42,973 24,123,475$  

Connections Revenue Connections Revenue

Single family 34,842 13,794,954$  34,900 10,139,954$  

Multiple family 2,913 3,536,202 2,922 3,266,928

Commercial 3,954 5,807,406 3,847 4,746,866

Landscape -                 -                  -                 -                  

Other 1,755 1,795,878 1,572 717,589

Total all users 43,464 24,934,440$  43,241 18,871,337$  

Source:  Department's records

2013 2012

2011 20082009

2007 2006

2010

2015 2014

72



City of San Bernardino Municipal Water Department

Water Rates: Elevation Charges $ per HCF

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Effective Date Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5 Zone 6

07/01/06 0.00 0.06 0.14 0.20 0.30 0.47

07/01/07 0.00 0.06 0.14 0.21 0.12 0.12

07/01/08 0.00 0.06 0.15 0.21 0.13 0.13

07/01/09 0.00 0.06 0.15 0.21 0.13 0.13

07/01/10 0.09 0.17 0.15 0.12 0.21 0.21

07/01/11 0.10 0.18 0.16 0.13 0.22 0.22

07/01/12 0.11 0.19 0.17 0.14 0.23 0.23

07/01/13 0.11 0.19 0.17 0.14 0.23 0.23

07/01/14 0.11 0.19 0.17 0.14 0.23 0.23

07/01/15 0.11 0.19 0.17 0.14 0.23 0.23
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City of San Bernardino Municipal Water Department

Top Ten Water Customers

Fiscal Year 2015

City of San Bernardino 1,260,575$    

San Bernardino Unified School District 719,163

Cott Beverages 311,477

County of San Bernardino 284,351

Housing Authority 232,150

California State University 225,113

St. Bernardino Hospital/CHW 130,572

Successor to Former San Bernardino EDA 124,327

W. Dean Weidner 123,825

Pama Management Company 123,007

Top Ten Customers Total 3,534,560$    

Total Water Revenue 32,220,868$  

 

Top Ten Customers Percent of Total 10.97%

Note:  Data not available for the fiscal period ended

nine years prior.

Customer-2015
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City of San Bernardino Municipal Water Department

Sewage Treatment Rate History

Fiscal Years 1995 through 2015

7/1/1995 1996-2004 7/1/2004 1/1/2009 1/1/2010 2/1/2011 1/1/2012 10/1/2015

Residential (monthly per EDU) 13.25 no change 14.50 15.25 16.00 17.00 18.50 20.65

Commercial:

   Commodity Charge (per HCF):

      Multi-family, mobile home parks 0.75 no change 0.83 0.90 0.95 1.10 1.25 1.36

      Retail, commercial, light industrial 1.10 no change 1.70 1.80 1.90 2.00 2.10 2.28

      Auto repair, car wash 1.20 no change 1.17 1.25 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.41

      Offices, motels (w/o restaurants) 0.95 no change 1.32 1.40 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.63

      Restaurants, hotels 1.70 no change 1.84 1.90 2.00 2.35 2.70 2.93

      Laundromats 0.90 no change 1.15 1.25 1.30 1.40 1.50 1.63

      Hospitals, convalescent homes 0.80 no change 0.84 0.90 0.95 1.15 1.35 1.46

      Schools, churches, nursery schools 0.50 no change 0.62 0.65 0.70 0.90 1.10 1.19

Industrial:

   Discharge Flow (per million gallons) 826.67 no change 816.10 860.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 977.00

   Biological Oxygen demand (per 1,000 lbs) * no change 264.91 280.00 292.00 330.00 360.00 391.00

   Suspended Solids (per 1,000 lbs) * no change 577.41 610.00 640.00 640.00 640.00 694.00

* data not reported

 

Source:  Department's records
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City of San Bernardino Municipal Water Department

Sewage Treatment Connections and Revenue by User Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years

User Type Connections Revenue Connections Revenue Connections Revenue Connections Revenue

San Bernardino Residential 32,874 $8,056,827 32,537 $8,111,634 32,563 $7,922,936 32,571 $7,650,142

San Bernardino Nonresidential 5,344 7,240,533 5,410 8,033,072 5,447 8,332,214 5,412 7,877,416

East Valley Residential 18,480 4,093,625 18,404 4,149,836 18,925 4,188,434 18,813 4,019,127

East Valley Nonresidential 1,051 2,571,813 1,115 2,725,075 1,126 2,434,118 1,128 2,492,375

Loma Linda Residential 5,040 997,242 4,656 991,387 4,663 1,063,124 4,443 933,648

Loma Linda Nonresidential 588 1,294,612 592 1,330,102 585 1,549,643 589 1,258,747

Total all users 63,377 $24,254,651 62,714 $25,341,106 63,309 $25,490,469 62,956 $24,231,455

Connections Revenue Connections Revenue Connections Revenue Connections Revenue

San Bernardino Residential 32,447 $7,053,263 32,307 $6,670,859 32,050 $6,288,804 32,058 $6,197,816

San Bernardino Nonresidential 5,416 7,131,988 5,196 6,699,228 5,434 6,625,012 5,491 6,570,125

East Valley Residential 18,700 3,645,721 18,157 3,348,238 17,986 3,285,452 17,956 3,221,455

East Valley Nonresidential 1,138 2,070,233 1,132 2,185,072 1,146 2,139,543 1,159 2,213,946

Loma Linda Residential 4,648 870,734 4,688 839,451 4,692 781,159 4,407 767,075

Loma Linda Nonresidential 584 1,048,402 588 1,016,088 559 984,117 576 1,011,795

Total all users 62,933 $21,820,341 62,068 $20,758,936 61,867 $20,104,087 61,647 $19,982,212

Connections Revenue Connections Revenue

San Bernardino Residential 32,367 $6,238,570 31,523 $6,021,449

San Bernardino Nonresidential 5,528 6,654,231 5,401 6,448,117

East Valley Residential 18,085 3,231,282 18,005 3,184,223

East Valley Nonresidential 1,160 2,252,260 1,160 2,171,095

Loma Linda Residential 4,567 728,111 4,493 728,713

Loma Linda Nonresidential 584 950,227 584 910,116

Total all users 62,291 $20,054,681 61,166 $19,463,713

Source:  Department's records

2007 2006

2015 2014 2013 2012

2008200920102011
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City of San Bernardino Municipal Water Department

Top Ten Sewage Treatment Customers

Fiscal Year 2015

Farmdale Creamery, Inc. 420,205$         

Cott Beverage 329,155           

County of San Bernardino 323,520           

Patton State Hospital 202,653           

Housing Authority 172,232

San Bernardino City Unified School District 172,145           

St. Bernardine Hospital/CHW 107,797           

Co-West Commodities 97,898             

Pama Management Company 94,078             

Cal State University San Bernardino 83,312             

Top Ten Customers Total 2,002,995$     

Total Sewer Revenue 24,263,000$   

Top Ten Customers Percent of Total 8.26%

Source:  Department's records

Note:  Data not available for the fiscal period ended

nine years prior.

Customer-2015
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Board of Water Commissioners 
Municipal Water Department of the City of 
San Bernardino, California      
 
 

We have audited the financial statements of the City of San Bernardino Municipal Water 

Department (Department) for the year ended June 30, 2015. Professional standards require that 

we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing 

standards and Government Auditing Standards and OMB Circular A-133, as well as certain 

information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such 

information in our letter to you dated October 23, 2015. Professional standards also require that 

we communicate to you the following information related to our audit. 

Significant Audit Findings 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The 

significant accounting policies used by the Department are described in Note 1 to the financial 

statements. Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68 was implemented 

during the year. We noted no transactions entered into by the Department during the year for 

which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have 

been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management 

and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and 

assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because 

of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events 

affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates 

affecting the Department’s financial statements were: 

• Judgements involving the funded status of the pension liability 
• Judgments involving the useful lives and depreciation methodology to use for capital 

assets. 
• Judgments concerning which capital project expenditures should be capitalized and 

depreciated versus expensed in the financial statements. 
 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and 

completing our audit. 
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Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified 

during the audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the 

appropriate level of management. Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, 

none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management 

were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit’s financial statements 

taken as a whole. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, 

or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the 

financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements 

arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the 

management representation letter dated January 26, 2016 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 

accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a 

consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the Department’s financial 

statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those 

statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to 

determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such 

consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 

auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Department’s auditors. 

However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and 

our responses were not a condition to our retention. 

Other Matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to Management’s Discussion and Analysis, which is 

required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our 

procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the 

information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 

inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of 

the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or 

provide any assurance on the RSI. 
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We were not engaged to report on the introductory section and the statistical section, which 

accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. We did not audit or perform other 

procedures on this other information and we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance 

on it. 

Restriction on Use 

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Water Commissioners and 

management of the City of San Bernardino Municipal Water Department and is not intended to 

be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 
 
 
Irvine, California 
January 26, 2016 

JFOSTER
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Board of Water Commissioners 
Municipal Water Department of the City of 
San Bernardino, California  
 

Communications Regarding Internal Control 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the City of San Bernardino Municipal Water 
Department (Department)  as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the Department’s internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Department’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Department’s internal control. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was 
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or 
material weaknesses and therefore there can be no assurance that all such deficiencies have been identified. 
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider 
to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the following deficiency to 
conform to that definition: 
 
 
 

(1) Adjustments Detected During the Audit 
 

Auditing standards require the auditors to include in our communications any material adjustment 
detected during the audit process. For the year ended June 30, 2015, we recorded the following material 
audit adjustments: 
 

• To adjust capital outlay expenditures relating to CIP 
• To adjust capital assets and fund balance for prior year entries not recorded 
• To adjust depreciation expense and accumulated depreciation for current year capital asset 

activity 
 

Recommendation 
 
We recommend all yearend adjustments are recorded prior to the start of the audit. 
 
Management’s Response 

 
We agree with the recommendation. 
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This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Water 
Commissioners, and others within the organization, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone 
other than these specified parties. 
 
 
 
 
Irvine, California 
January 26, 2016 
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